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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr.Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, aged 77, is Chairman of the
Company. After obtaining a Bachelor of Engineering
Degree (Chemical Engineering) in Canada in 1959, he
spent three years as a lecturer at the Hong Kong
Technical College until 1964 when he founded the
Company.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, aged 48, son of Dr. Wong,
Philip Kin Hang, was appointed to the Board as an
Executive Director on 15 September 1997. He graduated
from the University of Manchester Institute of Science &
Technology in 1987 and joined the Company in the same
year. He worked as an engineer, project coordinator,
engineering manager and then general manager for
operations.

Mr.Wong, Raymond Man Hin, aged 47, son of Mr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae, was appointed to the Board as a Non-
Executive Director on 18 July 2001 and re-designated as
an Executive Director on 19 April 2002. He became a
Deputy Executive Chairman on 19 April 2007. Mr. Wong
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Chemical Engineering and
a Master Degree in Economics. He is a U.S. Certified
Public Accountant (CPA), a Certified Management
Accountant (CMA) and is certified in financial
management (CFM). He is an independent non-executive
director of Modern Beauty Salon Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 0919) and Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited
(Stock code: 1229), both companies whose shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(*Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, aged 50, was Alternate Director to
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, Chairman until 1st July 2008
when he was appointed to the Board as an Executive
Director with effect from 1 July 2008. Mr. Mok joined the
Company as a production planning coordinator in 1990.
He was appointed as a production manager in 1993 and
general manager of Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical
Appliances Development Co. Ltd. in 1996. Since 2005,
Mr. Mok has been appointed as a member of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference in Guangzhou
City, Nansha District.

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang, GBS, Jr LLD, DH, aged 80,
brother of Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, has been a Director
of the Company since 1973. Dr. Wong is a consultant of
a Hong Kong firm of solicitors, a Notary Public and a
China Appointed Attesting Officer.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ARAESREREEE[EN

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng, aged 43, was appointed to the
Board as a Non-Executive Director on 3 January 2011.
Mr. Xiong graduated from the Department of Computer
Science of Nankai University and obtained his bachelor
degree in science in July 1992. He then obtained his
master degree in Economics from Nankai University
School of Economics in July 1995. Mr. Xiong joined China
North Industries Corporation in August 1995 and took up
the post of deputy general manager of China North
Industries Xiamen Corporation from October 1999 to
November 2000. Mr. Xiong is currently the chairman and
executive director of AKM Industrial Company Limited
(Stock code: 8298) (“AKM Industrial”), a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. In November
2000, Mr. Xiong joined Silver City International (Holdings)
Ltd., the controlling shareholder and a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”)) of AKM Industrial, as assistant
General Manager and was promoted to the position of
Deputy General Manager in March 2004. He is a director
of Alpha Luck Industrial Limited, the controlling
shareholder and a substantial shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of AKM Industrial since March 2001.
Mr. Xiong also serves as a director of AKM Electronics
Industrial (Panyu) Ltd., AKM Electronic Technology
(Suzhou) Company Limited, and Giant Rise Technology
Ltd.

Ms. Li,Yinghong, aged 50, was appointed to the Board
as a Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect
from 4 July 2008. Ms. Li is an executive director of AKM
Industrial. In July 1985, she obtained her Bachelor’s
Degree in Corporate Finance and Accounting from
Jiangxi College of Finance. In May 2003, she obtained a
Master Degree in International Management from
Australia National University. From March 2001 to April
2003, she was a director of Norinco International
Cooperation Company Limited, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in China. In June 2003, Ms.
Li joined Silver City International (Holdings) Ltd. as a
director, deputy general manager and financial controller.

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung, aged 70, was appointed
to the Board as an Independent Non-Executive Director
in 1988. He is an entrepreneur with extensive international
experience in garment manufacturing and trading. He is
the founder of the Onwel Group of Companies in 1969
and has been holding the position of Executive Chairman
since 1982.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da, aged 52, joined in 1994 as an
independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr.
Fan holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from the United States of America. He is the chairman
and managing director of AsialLink Capital Limited. He is
also an independent non-executive director of
Technovator International Limited (Stock Code: 1206),
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 0220),
Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group Limited
(Stock Code: 0563), Renhe Commercial Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1387), Tenfu Cayman
Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 6868), Citic Resources
Limited (Stock Code: 1205), Guodian Technology &
Environment Group Corporation Limited (Stock Code:
1296) and Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company
Limited (Stock Code: 2882), all listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr Fan is also the independent
non-executive director of Shenzhen World Union Property
Consultancy Co. Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. In June 2011, he resigned as an
independent non-executive director of Chinney Alliance
Group Limited (Stock Code: 0385), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming, aged 76, was appointed to the Board
as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 2 July 2004.
Mr. Ng was previously a non-executive director of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited (Stock code: 0440), a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
He has over 40 years of experience in hire purchase and
leasing finance.

Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun, aged 39, was appointed
to the Board as an Independent Non-Executive Director
on 1 January 2013. He has more than 12 years of working
experience in investment banking and advising on
corporate finance. He is currently an executive director
and deputy general manager of Guotai Junan Capital
Limited and an independent non-executive director of
Kingdom Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 528), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He also has three years of experience in
the field of auditing and accounting. He is a member of
the American Institute of CPA, a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountant and a member of
CFA Institute. Mr. Lo obtained his bachelor of commerce
degree from University of British Columbia in 1995.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

| am pleased to present the Group’s annual results of
Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2012.

During the financial year (FY) of 2012, the pool of skilled
labour continued to shrink in Guangdong province as
many of the non Guangdong province workers chose to
stay at their home provinces. Given the experience of
labour shortage and unsatisfactory operation
performance in FY2011, the Group’s management
formulated different strategies and operation procedures
in FY2012 by implementing more semi-automation to
reduce labour’s head count; and initiated an ecological
friendly cost saving “Green Program” to reduce energy
consumption to improve the Group’s profitability. As a
result, for FY2012, the Group’s consolidated turnover
increased to HK$1,278,078,943, representing an increase
of 8.7% compared with previous year. The Group’s net
profit improved significantly to HK$47,001,236,
representing an increase of 159%, compared with the
net profit of HK$18,160,024 in FY2011. Cash generated
from operations was HK$28,305,803. Cash and cash
equivalents at the financial year end of 2012 was
HK$149,241,346 (with HK$26,141,182 dividend paid out
during the year) compared with HK$169,334,260 at the
beginning of the year. The positive operating cash flow
and substantial cash balances allow the Group to
continue to pay satisfactory amounts of dividends and
invest more in automation processes.

In FY2012, the Group had invested HK$24,130,477 to set
up new semi-automated production lines for a series of
new products, as well as purchasing more robotic arms
for injection moulding machines and automatic paint
spraying equipment. At the same time, the Group’s
management re-examined profitability of each product
line and terminated products with low margin.

The Group’s net profit was HK$47,001,236, representing
basic earnings per share of 10.87 HK cents (net profit in
FY2011 was HK$18,160,024, with basic earnings per
share of 4.27 HK cents).
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
AND COMMITMENT

WORKPLACE QUALITY

The Group focused on 4 areas to enhance good
workplace quality:

(i)

(i)

Working conditions: The Group’s labour policies
were in full compliance with Mainland China labour
laws and Hong Kong labour laws applicable in
corresponding locations. The working hours,
benefits and welfares of all staff and workers were
also in compliance with local labour laws and
fulfilled working conditions requirement from major
customers and US/European retail stores who
conducted regular audits throughout the year by
3rd parties such as ITS and SGS.

Health and Safety: The Group was in compliance
with Mainland China labour laws and Hong Kong
labour laws applicable in corresponding locations.
Work injuries and key occupational health and safety
KPIs were illustrated in the chart below:

TEHEEERER

THEREER
EEEREATAERBLE TIFRRNEE -

(i)

(i)

TERE  fRENS THR=2NAERRNTEER
MEBREMNEETEE S TEGIREESL A
fl - FIEETAMT AR TIERE - FEMEFNHENTE
BHAETEY AR TEANSFERBAE=7
(g0 1TS ~ SGS) R FETERNEERPHE
XTERYTHERENER -

BEEZE  KREZE2NAEARNTREEEBMEERE
SHERTEE S AR REES AR - BiXE
FRZ2NERERERFEL2HTE

FY 2012 vs

FY 2011

FY 2012 FY 2011 20124 B2

20124 20114 20115 MLk

(%)

Number of work injuries TE&E 64 78 -17.95%
Medical Expenses due to TEEERZ (B%)

work injuries (HKD) 140,190.55 303,552.37 -53.82%

The Group was encouraged to see a safer work
place evidenced by fewer work injuries and lower
medical expenses in FY2012.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

(iii)  Development and Training: The Group provided
updated Listing Rules training for directors and
senior executives, the Group also provided training
for middle management, regular employees and
production line workers and corresponding key
Development and Training KPIs are illustrated in the
chart below:

(i) BREEI  SREER/EENSRITHRABRHESEH
B ETARRIE  MATREERE - ERET - UK
FERT ARHEERBE - BREAREEERR
BT ERERERIERBE2H TR

Average Training

Hours per

No. of Employee

Employees HEEE

EEAH" T2 HI R E

(hrs)

(/]NBF)

Middle management RRERE 453 20
Regular employees FRET 544 35
Production line workers EEZTA 2,612 65

(iv) Labour Standard: The Group adopted a recruitment
policy that prevented the hiring of child labour and
forced labour. The Group also encouraged the
workers to form labour unions. A labour union was
formed at our Nansha, Panyu factory and union
representatives held regular meetings throughout
the year to communicate issues that could improve
workers’ morale, upgrade the living quarters and
working environment, and report workers/
management disputes to the Group’s senior
management.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

The Group focused on aspects that would enhance
environmental protection and adopted policies that would
lower CO2 emissions during the manufacturing
processes, minimize excessive use of resources such as
electricity, diesel, water and paper.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

(i) CO2 emissions: The chart below illustrated the type
of emissions and respective emission data. The
Group will continue to strive for measures to lower
CO2 emissions.

() ZSEHRMBER « RGP EE AR P
B RESEBBNRITARE -SRI RNE
I

FY 2012 vs

FY 2011

FY 2012 FY 2011 20124 2

20124 20114 20115 Mtk

(%)

Electricity £ 20.00 21.565 -7.16%
(killotonnes CO2) (F 2 = /A Fx)

Oil JH 0.85 1.28 -33.41%
(killotonnes CO2) (FAmE=R//EHx)

Gas o 0.04 0.05 -21.15%

(killotonnes CO2) (G k=79

(i)  Use of Resources: The chart below illustrates the
energy consumption by type throughout FY2012
and show comparative data with that of FY2011:

(i) BRER : BESEL2012F FE A RE20114F
e REERSBERNEEENEHATRET
x:

FY 2012 vs

FY 2011

FY 2012 FY 2011 20124 B2

20124 20114 20115 MLkt

(%)

Electricity £ 25.48 27.45 -7.16%

(GWh) (FIKE /)

il i 266.97 401.20 -33.46%
(tonnes) (AWE)

Gas E=f 21,500.40 27,365.40 -21.43%
(kgs) (F7=)

The Group was particularly pleased with the
environmental performance as our sales in FY2012
increased while the operating team achieved lower CO2
emissions and use less of non-renewable resources.

OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group focused on key areas to enhance management
and formulate some operating best practice procedures
by tightening corporate governance policies and setting
guidelines for preventing staff and workers from
committing frauds and engaged in illegal activities.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

(i) Anti-corruption policy was straightly enforced
among all management personnel and all suppliers
in the Group’s supply chain. The Group was not
aware of any legal cases regarding corruption of
the Group’s management and employees. The
Group also has an independent internal audit
department reporting directly to the chairman of the
Group’s audit committee and has a whistleblowing
system to notify the audit committee of any potential
fraud and malpractices.

(i) Product Safety: The Group has a policy to work
closely with customers to cooperate on any recalls
and safety/health related issue; and the Group has
a quality system that handled customers (and
related products) complaints. Root cause analysis
would be conducted on each major customer
complaint to avoid re-occurance of product defects.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group focused on key areas to enhance management
in order to create a better community by implementing
programs that built a better society through a wide range
of activities and initiatives:

(i) Encourage the use of recycled paper: The Group has
begun a program to use more recycled paper in
operations including printing interim & annual report
booklets; and working with customers to change
product instruction books to recycled paper materials.

(i)  Investment in new talents: The Group continued to
sponsor programs at Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and members of the Group gave guest
lectures at Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
Shanghai Fudan University during FY2012.

(iii) Education involvement: members of the Group
management participated in mentorship programs
organized by Hong Kong JCI (Junior Chamber
International) to support growth of young
professionals.

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DM

FINANCIAL POSITION

The ligquidity position of the Group remains sound. Its
current ratio was 2.5 as of 31 December 2012, compared
with 2.2 as of 31 December 2011.

During FY2012, the Group’s trade receivables turnover
stood at 73 days, compared with 56 days in FY2011. The
inventory turnover in FY2012 is 40 days, compared with
53 days in FY2011.

Bank balances and cash were HK$149,241,346 as of 31
December 2012 (2011: HK$169,334,260), representing
a decrease of HK$20,092,914 when compared to the
figures in the previous year, which was mainly due to
investments in machineries and dividends payout during
the year.

There were no bank borrowings as of 31 December 2012,
and the Group’s debt to equity ratio was 37% as of
31 December 2012 (2011: 45%).

The Group had no contingent liabilities as of 31 December
2012 (2011: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the share capital structure of the
Company has not been changed with details shown in
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board of the Company has proposed the payment of
a final dividend of 5 HK cents per ordinary share for the
year ended 31 December 2012. The proposed final
dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, will be paid on 5
June 2013 to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 30 May 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DM

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
for the following periods:

(1) For the purpose of determining shareholders who
are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Wednesday,
22 May 2013 (“2013 AGM"), the Register of
Members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 20 May 2013 to Wednesday, 22 May 2013,
both days inclusive. In order to be qualified for
attending and voting at the 2013 AGM, all transfer
documents should be lodged for registration with
the Company’s share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 1712-1716,
17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday,
16 May 2013.

(2) For the purpose of determining shareholders who
are qualified for the final dividend, the Register of
Members of the Company will be closed on Tuesday,
28 May 2013 to Thursday, 30 May 2013, both days
inclusive. In order to be qualified for the final
dividend, all transfer documents should be lodged
for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 27 May 2013.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group had no charges on assets as of 31 December
2012 (2011: Nil).

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group is cautiously optimistic about operations and
performances in FY2013. The Group will continue to
launch new innovative products in new product
categories and will focus on growing market shares in
Japan, Korea and Mainland China as this marketing
strategy worked well to mitigate market uncertainties and
weaknesses in USA and Europe in FY2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DM

During FY2012, the Group successfully launched new
series of air purifiers, beverage products and grooming
products, including one innovative product in the medical
device category. The Group will continue to develop new
products in these categories in FY2013.

In anticipation of the sales growth over the next few years
with continuous new product launch, our Group invested
over HK$24,130,477 in new production equipment in
FY2012. We will continue to upgrade our manufacturing
processes in FY2013. Our management has already
started to look at new manufacturing site suitable for
future expansions, as we expect our current
manufacturing plant at Nansha, Panyu will reach its full
production capacity within the next 3-4 years. We have
tentatively zeroed in on a few possible new manufacturing
sites (including the possibility to relocate a portion of
manufacturing arms to Vietnam and other Asian countries
with lower labour costs) and will make a final decision in
FY2013.

STAFF

The Group currently employs approximately 39 Hong
Kong staff members and provides them with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. The defined
contribution pension scheme previously set up for Hong
Kong staff members was terminated in 2012. Our factory
in the Mainland China employs approximately 500 staff
members, and workers employed directly or indirectly
ranged from 3,000 to 4,000 persons during the year.
Remuneration is determined by reference to their
qualifications, experiences and performances.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend the Board’s
appreciation to all our staff for their hard work and
dedication throughout the year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in the
United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
The Group does not foresee any substantial exposure to
foreign currency fluctuations and thus use of financial
instruments for exchange rate hedging purpose is not
considered.
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Report of the Directors
ESERE

O

The Board has the pleasure to submit the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong and has its registered office and principal place of
business at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech
Centre, 8 On Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is sale of electrical
home appliances. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Group during the
financial year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases attributable to
the Group’s major customers and suppliers during the
financial year are as follows:

EEOEN ST AEFEHE2012F12A831 B ILFE 7 F3§
NS BIZZ BV IERE ©

TEEENE
ARBE—HERBEMALN EHRAE - EMHERN
TEXBWHRERENAL EL FEHREZF L1812
1801-1813% ©

TEXHK
ARBZIBEBRHERAES  EXEXBRENEB
RBEDMERERE M B RRME12 -

AEEz EREBRBREBOITENEGRE P BRRME
10 °

TERFRHER

AEEzTZ2HERMELHEASBEFE 2 RBELE
ERZADHLWT ¢

Percentage of
The Group’s total

AEEZEHBSE
Sales Purchases
SHER RiERE
The largest customer SPNEYS 32% N/AZ i 3
Five largest customers in AAREFAF
aggregate 90% N/AT i A
The largest supplier AR ER N/AT & A 23%
Five largest suppliers in AREEREET
aggregate N/AT & 42%

None of directors (the “Directors”), their associates or
any shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in these
major customers and suppliers during the year.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012 and the state of affairs of the Group as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 47 to 123.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$47,001,236 (2011: profit of HK$18,160,024) have
been transferred to reserves.

An interim dividend of 2 HK cents per share on 2012
(2011: 2 HK cents). The Board recommends the payment
of a final dividend of 5 HK cents per share (2011: 4 HK
cent per share) in respect of the year ended 31 December
2012.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$15,600 (2011: HK$167,750).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Company
are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 21(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors:
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng

Ms. Li, Yinghong

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming

Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun
(appointed on 1 January 2013)

Alternate Directors:
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun

(alternate to Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae)
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit

(alternate to Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang)

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s articles
of association (“Articles of Association”), Mr. Wong, John
Ying Man; Ms. Li, Yinghong, Mr. Ng Yiu Ming and
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun will retire from the Board by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

The Non-Executive Directors do not have specific terms
of appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the transactions disclosed in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests of the Directors in
the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries and other
associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the ‘SFQ”)) as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(i) Interests in issued shares

EERAATZRHGRABROER

MR2012% 128318 » FESFRARQE - WB A& REEH
FE (ExRES ISR ([FEHEG])) 25 REHE
R - RIBARRBKEF KO EIS2EMRE < B MAT
sk RBAQREEBMZERDOT

Number of shares

BHEEHE
% of total
Issued
Personal Family Corporate Share Shares
Interests  Interests  Interests  Options Total AR
BAERZ ZEER ZEER B B BRABEIE
(Note 1) (Note 5)
(G£1) (3%5)
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae B AL 11,377,584 150,000 91,497,597 3,000,000 106,025,181 24.49%
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(7#2) (313)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BRELAE 10,668,448 - - 6,800,000 17,468,448 4.03%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin ~ EXELAE 12,417,972 - - 3,800,000 16,217,972 3.75%
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing Rfg@®gaE - - - 6,800,000 6,800,000 1.57%
Non-Executive Directors FHITEE
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang LA - - 35,755,688 4,943,000 40,698,688 9.40%
(Note 4)
(314)
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng BEFELAE - - - 1,950,000 1,950,000 0.45%
Ms. Li, Yinghong Fpaght - - - 4,450,000 4,450,000 1.03%
Independent Non-Executive — BUEHITEE
Directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 2R LA 3,694,300 - - 993,800 4,688,100 1.08%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLERE 644,300 - - 993,800 1,638,100 0.38%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming mRALE 1,023,800 - - 300,000 1,323,800 0.31%
Alternate Directors reZ
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit BRELE - - - 1,350,000 1,350,000 0.31%
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun R LA 900,000 - - 1,730,000 2,630,000 0.61%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(i) Interests in issued shares (Continued)
Notes:

(1) The shares are registered under the names of the Directors
who are the beneficial shareholders.

(2)  Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, spouse of Mr. Wong, Wilson
Kin Lae, is the beneficial shareholder.

(8)  Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the beneficial shareholder of
91.7% of the issued share capital of Broadbridge
Enterprises Limited and Diamond-Harvest Limited, which
owned 13,615,837 and 77,881,760 shares respectively in
the Company as at 31 December 2012.

(4)  Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang is the beneficial shareholder of
50% of the issued capital of Ho Kit Man Inc. and Sunnydale
Enterprises Holdings Ltd., which owned 35,669,688 and
86,000 shares in the Company respectively as at 31
December 2012.

(5)  Share options are granted to the Directors under the Share
Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting on 6
June 2003, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent
long positions in the shares.

(ii) Interests in underlying shares

Apart from as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, none of the Directors or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its holding
Company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations,
as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options are granted to the Directors, employees
and other eligible participants specified under the
Scheme approved by shareholders of the Company at
the extraordinary general meeting on 6 June 2003. Details
of the Scheme are as follows:

Purpose To give eligible participants
incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential
contribution to the Group

Participants (iy  Directors, employees of any

member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder of the
Company (“Controlling
Shareholder”) or any
company controlled by a
Controlling Shareholder,

(i) Holder of any securities
issued by any member of the
Group or any Controlling
Shareholder of the Company
or any company controlled by
a Controlling Shareholder,

(iii) (a) any business or joint
venture partner,
contractor, agent or

representative of,

(b) any supplier of goods or
services to, or

(c) any customer or
distributor of goods or
services of,

Any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder
or a company controlled by a
Controlling Shareholder;

And for the purpose of the
Scheme, shall include any
company controlled by one or
more persons belonging to
any of the above classes of
persons
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Total number of
ordinary shares
Available for
issue and the
percentage of
the issued share
capital that it
represents as at
the date of the
annual report

Maximum
entitlement of
each participant

Period within which
the securities
must be taken up
under an option

Minimum period
for which an
option must be
held before it can
be exercised

Amount payable
on acceptance
of the option

Period within which
payments must
be made

Basis of determining
the exercise price

The remaining life
of the Scheme

76,523,600 ordinary shares and
17.67% of the issued share capital

1% of the aggregate number of
ordinary shares in issue in any 12-
month period up to the date of
grant

Within a maximum period of 10
years commencing from the date
of grant of such options

Not applicable

HK$1.00 for each lot of share
options granted

21 days from the date of the offer

The higher of (i) the closing price
of the shares on the offer date or
(i) the average closing price of the
shares for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the offer of
the option, provided that the
exercise price is not less than the
nominal value of the share

The Scheme shall remain in force
until 5 June 2013 unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Directors, employees and
other participants had the following interests in options
to subscribe for shares of the Company (market value
per share at 31 December 2012 was HK$0.83) which were
granted for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of options
under the Scheme. The options are unlisted. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share of the Company with nominal value at HK$0.50.

No. of options

B ERTE @

R2012F12A31H * £E - EEREMSE A TR
FHEA T LD  ZSERETRIEEIE S A HE
BHEAREVETEDL @ JREARERMD (KR2012F12 7431
AERMEA0.838T) - BRI E 1 - SDERER
FEHEANEFRE —BRARQRRFREEC.50/8 Ty &l
A% o

BREHA
Market value
Held at Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding per share at
1st January During During during At the Period During date of grant
2012 the year the year the year Year end which Options Exercise  of options*
#2012F RER RER RER  RELH are Exercisable Price  RERE
1A18 Bz FH2 E®z  Xf7ffz  Dategranted BRETTE per Share RHAHZ
2EH BREHE BREE BREZE BREZE RHAH A ] BROKE  BRWE
HK$ HK$
iy iy
Directors
Bz
Executive Directors:
HITEE:
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
BE %L 20126 7H20A 19 July 2022
201247R208%
202257A19A
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man 3,800,000 - - 3,800,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
ERERE 200856 /30R 29 June 2018
2008567308 %
201856/ 29A
- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
2012%7A20H 19 July 2022
2012F7A208Z%
2022F7A19A
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin 800,000 - - 800,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
EXBEE 200856A30A 29 June 2018
2008567308 E
20184567290
3,000,000 - 3,000,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
20126 7R 20 19 July 2022
201247208 %
20226 7H19A
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing 3,800,000 - - 3,800,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
SRELE 2008467 30H 29 June 2018
2008F6A308Z
201846/ 29H
- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
20126 7H20A 19 July 2022
201247R208%
202257A19A
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRERTE (@)
No. of options
BREHA
Market value
Held at Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding per share at
1st January During During during At the Period During date of grant
2012 the year the year the year Year end which Options Exercise  of options*
20128 RER RER RER  RELH are Exercisable Price  WERE
1A1A Bz i Bz  Affffz  Dategranted BRETTE per Share REAHZ
&% BREHE BREBE BRERE BREHE REAH 2] BRORE  BRTE*
HK$ HK$
ey e
Non-Executive Directors:
FHITES:
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang 493,000 - - - 493,000 21 June 2005 21 June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
EEAD 200556A 218 5 June 2013
2005564218 %
201356 /50
1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
200856730 29 June 2018
200856300 E
201856 /29A
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 6 Qctober2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
20096 10A6H 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HZE
2019510A5A
- 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
20126 7R 20H 19 July 2022
20126 7A208 %
202278 19A
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng 450,000 - - - 450,000 30 June 2008 30June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
REEEE 200856730 29 June 2018
200856 A30HE
201856 /29A
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 Qctober 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
20096 10A6H 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HZE
2019510A5A
- 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
2012677 20H 19 July 2022
20126 7A208%E
202278 19A
Ms. Li, Yinghong 1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
FRALT 200856308 29 June 2018
200856300 E
201856 729A
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 6 October2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
20096 10A6H 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HZ
2019510A5A
- 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
201267720 19 July 2022
20126 7A208%
202278 19A
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang 1,750,000 - (1,750,000 - - 30June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
(resigned on 3 January 2011) 200867 30H 29 June 2018
(Note 1) 200856300 E
HEEEEL 2018567298
(2011 F1A3EEHT) (1) 1,500,000 - (1,500,000 - - 60ctober 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
20096 10A6H 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HZE
2019F10A5A
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EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No. of options

B ERTE @

BREHE
Market value
Held at Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding per share at
1st January During During during At the Period During date of grant
2012 the year the year the year Year end which Options Exercise  of options*
R20126 RER RER RER  RELH are Exercisable Price  RERE
1A1H Bz R E¥Ez  ARfiffz  Dategranted BRETIE per Share RHAHZ
&% BREHE BREBE BRERE BREHE RHEAH ZHH ERORE  BRTE
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Independent Non-Executive
Directors:
BUFHTEE :
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 393,800 - - - 393,800 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
ZREEE 200856 A30H 29 June 2018
200856 A30HE
20185629
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 October2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009107161 5 October 2019
2009F10A6EE
201951050
- 300,000 - - 300,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
2012%7R20H 19 July 2022
012F7TA0RZ
202247H190
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da 393,800 - - - 393,800 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BLERE 200856 A30H 29 June 2018
200856 A30HE
20185629
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 October2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009107361 5 October 2019
2009F10A6EE
201951050
- 300,000 - - 300,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
2012%7R20H 19 July 2022
012F7TA0RZ
202247H190
Mr. Ng Yiu Ming - 300,000 - - 300,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
mERLE 2012%7A20H 19 July 2022
012F7TA0RZ
202247H190
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EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No. of options

BREHE

B ERTE @

Market value

Held at Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding per share at
1st January During During during At the Period During date of grant
2012 the year the year the year Year end which Options Exercise  of options*
#2012% RER RER RER  RELH are Exercisable Price  RERE
1A1R Bz R E#Ez  Afiffz  Dategranted BRETTE per Share  RitAfz
&% BREHE BREBE BRERE BREHE REAH 2] BRORE  BRTE*
HK$ HK$
iy iy
Alternate Directors:
REE:
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit 450,000 - - - 450,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
ERRRE 200856 30H 29 June 2018
200856300 E
201856 429A
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 October2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510 A6H 5 October 2019
20095 10A6EZE
2019610/ 5A
- 600,000 - - 600,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
201246 7R 20H 19 July 2022
20126 7A208%
20225 7R 19A
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun 930,000 - - - 930,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
RTHEE 200856 730H 29 June 2018
200856 A30HE
201856 429A
- 800,000 - - 800,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
201246 7R 20H 19 July 2022
20126 7A208%
20225 7R 19A
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EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No. of options

B ERTE @

BREZA
Market value
Held at Granted  Cancelled  Exercised Outstanding per share at
1st January During During during At the Period During date of grant
2012 the year the year the year Year end which Options Exercise  of options*
W2012% RER RER RER  RELH are Exercisable Price  RERE
1A1R Btz R EEz  £fiffz  Dategranted BRETTE per Share RHAHZ
2GR BREHE BREHE BREZE BREZE RHEH 2B BROEE  BRWE
HK$ HK$
iy iy
Employees 472,000 - (55,000) - 417,000 21 June 2005 21 June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
Es 200556A21H 5 June 2013
2005567216
2013%6A5H
8,358,000 - (150,000) - 8,208,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
200867 30H 29 June 2018
2008567308 ZE
2018568 29A
2,975,000 - - (90,0000 2,885,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
200910768 5 QOctober 2019
2009F1086B%
20195 10A5A
- 20,330,000 - (527,000) 19,803,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 to 0.690 0.690
2012%7A20H 19 July 2022
201267208
20225 7R 19A
Other eligible persons 50,000 - - - 50,000 21 June 2005 21 June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
EfeERAL 200556A21H 5 June 2013
2005567216
2013%6A50
3,900,000 - - - 3,900,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
200867 30H 29 June 2018
2008567308 ZE
2018568 29A
250,000 - - - 250,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
200910768 5 QOctober 2019
2009F10868%
20195 10A5A
- 4,050,000 - (150,000) 3,900,000 20 July 2012 20 July 2012 o 0.690 0.690
2012%7A20H 19 July 2022
201267208
2022%7F19A
38,465,600 42,280,000  (3,455,000) (767,000) 76,523,600
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EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Notes:

(1)  The Board agreed to extend the rights of exercise of
outstanding share options of Mr. Huang Zhouchang to 31
March 2012.

The options granted to the Directors are registered under
the names of the Directors who are the beneficial owners.

*

being the weighted average closing price of the
Company'’s ordinary shares immediately before the dates
on which the options were granted or exercised (as the
case may be).

Information on the accounting policy for the options
granted and the weighted average value per option is
provided in note 2(k)(ii) and note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Apart from disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2012 was the Company, or any of
its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

B ERTE @

Fi o

(1) EZF=eREBEEREFESLEMNTEZEREBHZ2012F
3H31H »

RTESEZBREDUNRKR
na"

VESEBAZEFTCARE

* BIARR B BERERBRERLRITE (WE
Z NI AE o

#/8) B3 HAT

REBRE 8BRS BRENEFHEZERD
BB AR A B 7% TR M S 2(k) (if) K B 5£20 -

B EXEHEEL  NEZE20126E12 A31H I FEE R EA
M AQFE - HERZRAR - HBARRFARME AR
WHFMREEEUBEAR TS EMNEMETER DK ES
TGN E LT -
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EZERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2012, according to the register of
members kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be
ascertained after reasonable enquiry by the Directors,
the following persons/entities, other than a Director, had
an interest in the shares and underlying shares and
debentures of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

FEREANADTZ RO RABRG >

R2012F12A318 » AR AIRIEE S5 G0 336168 F
GFEZRRERLM REEEELAEETNETMNE
R THAL/ BE(TREESR) RAQRKS - HEK
B REFPEBBRIEEFEHEXVIE 2R 35 ZIE AR
RAREEZ HEm

Number of shares

ROBE
% of total
issued
Registered Corporate Family Total shares
Shareholders Interests interest AN ETER CHE:Eh
EEERE EEER ZEEZ ROBEYE RHAEDE
Substantial shareholders TERE
Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai FMELL 150,000 91,497,597 14,377,584 106,025,181 24.49%
(Note 2) (Note 1)
(32) (31)
Diamond-Harvest Limited Diamond-Harvest Limited 77,881,760 - - 77,881,760 17.99%
(Note 3)
(#3)
Silver Talent Development FUBRERAA - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 12.26%
Limited
Mrs. Wong Cheng, HEEBL L - 35755688 4,943,000 40,698,688 9.40%
Gertrude Kwok Cheng (Note 4)
(34)
Ho Kit Man Inc. Ho Kit Man Inc. 35,669,688 - - 35,669,688 8.24%
(Note 5)
(35)
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EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(Continued)

Notes:

(1) These shares were held by Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae,
spouse of Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, details of which
are set out in the section headed “Directors’ interests in
shares and underlying shares” above.

(2)  These shares were held through Broadbridge Enterprises
Limited and Diamond-Harvest Limited, companies
beneficially owned by Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai and her
spouse, Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

(8)  These shares were held through Diamond-Harvest Limited,
a company controlled by Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai and
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

(4) These shares were held by Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang,
spouse of Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertude Kwok Cheung,
details of which are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ interest in shares and underlying shares”
above.

(5) These shares were held through Ho Kit Man Inc., a
company controlled by Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertude Kwok
Cheung and Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent
long positions in the shares of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of
this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

FIVEYEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 124 of this annual report.

FEREANADTZ RO RABRG >
(#)

GEX

(1) ZEBRMHTVEBFMELTZEBEZMNELRTHE - FH15
F2H LA [EERNARA 2RO MR DR 2500 -

2 %EROGDEBFPELTIRAKBESREAZ
Broadbridge Enterprises Limited &2 Diamond-Harvest
Limited¥$ 4 °

@) ZEBRILEEMERZNEERTFMELTENZ

Diamond-Harvest Limitedi% A& -

(4) HZEBEHVEARNEELZTZEBELFEHELRA - &
BR2H LM [ESFNAREZ KD KRR D #EzE] 25

1/\ °

(5) #ZEBRMHIEGRELSETEEEEE 4% 2 Ho Kit
Man Inc.# 5 o

LEEB D PRSI Z s A RN AR B 2 RN P EVEF A o

RHARBRE
REARRRAFAGEMSHEM MU AARESHA -
RAFHRNEBY  NRREBEERERIMBERAF
E EMAN(TEMRUD AREZARFHRE ©

SERMBEE

AEBERESEMRFERZFEREEABBREHNE124
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of Hong Kong, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares during the year ended 31 December 2012.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No substantial contracts concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2012, which
do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, are disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
which cover all of the Group’s employees. Particulars of
the retirement scheme are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent.
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EZERE

AUDITORS

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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Corporate Governance Report
ExERBRE

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) puts great
emphasis on corporate governance by reviewing and
strengthening corporate governance measures from time
to time. The board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company believes that shareholders can derive maximum
benefits from good corporate governance.

Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance
with the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
(effective until 31 March 2012) during the period from 1
January 2012 to 31 March 2012 and the Corporate
Governance Code during the period from 1 April 2012 to
31 December 2012, with an exception of deviations from
code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code in respect of the
service term of independent non-executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to retirement by rotation.

None of the existing independent non-executive directors
of the Company is appointed for a specific term. This
constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1 of the
CG Code. However, all independent non-executive
directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
Articles of Association. The Company has also received
the annual confirmation of independence from each
independent non-executive director and the Board
believes that independent non-executive director
continues to be independent. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that the standard of the Company’s corporate
governance practices is not lower than those required in
the CG Code.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors.
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tXERBME

Having made specific enquiry, all the directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standards as
set out in the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2012.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes
the Board and three committees under the Board, namely
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The Board stipulates the terms of reference
for all committees in writing and specifies clearly the
power and responsibilities of the committees.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises four Executive Directors, three
Non-Executive Directors, and four Independent
Non-Executive Directors (and two Alternate Directors).
Each of the Non-Executive Directors is appointed for an
unspecified term. Please refer to page 16 of this annual
report for composition of the Board.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors have complied
with the requirements of the Listing Rules and have
submitted to the Company annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and
confirms that all Independent Non-Executive Directors
are independent parties as defined in the Listing Rules.
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung was appointed on 16 March
1988, Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da was appointed on 12
December 1994 and Mr. Ng Yiu Ming was appointed on
2 July 2004. The appointment of Directors is not fixed for
a specified term, but, are subject to the retirement and
re-election requirements at every annual general meeting
pursuant to the Articles of Association.
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The family relationship among the Directors is
summarized as follows:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, Chairman and Dr. Wong, Philip
Kin Hang are brothers.

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the father of Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin and uncle of Mr. Wong, John Ying Man
and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit.

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang is the father of Mr. Wong, John
Ying Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit and uncle of Mr.
Wong, Raymond Man Hin.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit
are brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Wong, Raymond
Man Hin.

The Directors have conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The Board convenes at least four regular meetings each
year, and will convene further meetings when necessary.
When a regular Board meeting is convened, the Board
documents will be sent to the Directors for review before
the meeting pursuant to the Listing Rules and the CG
Code so that the Directors can keep abreast of the
information to perform their duties and responsibilities.
The Board convened 6 meetings in 2012.
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vz Tasii)
TEERRSE
The attendance of directors is as follows: EELFEBERAT
Attendance
No. of meetings
Attended/
No. of meetings
held during
term of service Attendance
Director Name HEHEERRE Rate
EEEE FHRERXIH HE=E
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae =N AE (/)

(Chairman) 6/6 100%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BERHEE 5/6 83%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BEXBEE 6/6 100%
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing SRR 6/6 100%
Non-Executive Directors HFHITESE
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang mRFET 5/6 83%
Ms Li, Yinghong R4+ 6/6 100%
Mr. Xiong Zhengfeng AR IF & % A 5/6 83%
Independent Non-Executive — BV ¥ HITEE

Directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RS A 6/6 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BIERE 5/6 83%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HIBER & 6/6 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun mEELE

(appointed on 1 January 2013) (2013FF1H1BZE) 0/0 0%

The remuneration of Directors is determined with
reference to their functions and responsibilities in the
Company, the performance of the Company and the
current market conditions. No Director is allowed to
participate in determining his own remuneration. The
remuneration received by Directors from the Company
during the year is set out in Note 7 of the consolidated
financial statements. The Board has set up an
independent professional consulting procedure and upon
reasonable request, Directors are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the chairman also
held meeting with Independent non-executive directors
without presence of executive directors during the year.

The Company maintained the training record received
by each of the Directors in FY 2012.

EENME I 2ERESARARANBHEREL - A2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises four Independent Non-
Executive Directors with extensive experience in
accounting or legal matters. The audit committee was
established with specific written terms of reference,
mainly responsible for reviewing the financial statements
and annual and interim reports and accounts of the
Company, submitting relevant reports and
recommendations to the Board, reviewing the Company’s
financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems and making recommendations on the
appointment and remuneration of the auditors of the
Company and any matters related to the termination of
appointment. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman
of the audit committee and is responsible for reporting
the results and recommendations of the audit committee
to the Board after each meeting.

In 2012, the audit committee convened 2 meetings.
Members of the audit committee and their attendance
are as follows:

BEREES
ERZEEHARBEIIFATERMAN - EEHZCEAETE
LELKR ERZEQCKUERBERTIEETERFHN
REAMMBRRRFERBLFRERKE  RAEFSR
RERBRERERER EHARRZMBEE - AEE
2R REBREERGMRARRZBEDORE - HM R EMA
BERITZEAREERLES  RBELERERZES
MEF AERBRAERRMNEZTEREERZEGNE

1% 0

| A

MN2012%5 - EREZESHEBH2REE - KERFELDN
T

Attendance

No. of meetings
attended/

No. of meetings

held during the year Attendance
Member Name HEHEERRE Rate
BEE® FHASHRE HE =R
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RROERE (E/E)

(Chairman) 2/2 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BITESLE 2/2 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (b 2 2/2 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEESLAE (2013F1A1BET) 0/0 0%

(appointed on 1 January 2013)

Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the year
included reviewing the 2011 audited consolidated
financial statements and the annual results
announcement, reviewing the interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2012 and the interim results
announcement, considering the accounting standards
adopted, reviewing the explanatory letter about audit
submitted by the auditors to the management and the
response of the management, the basis of opinion and
qualified opinion (if any) made by the auditors in their
report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises four Independent
Non-Executive Directors and two Executive Directors. The
remuneration committee was established with specific
written terms of reference, principally responsible for
reviewing and approving remuneration plans for directors
and senior management, determining the remuneration
package of Executive Directors and senior management,
including benefits, pension interests and the payment of
compensation. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman
of the remuneration committee and is responsible for
reporting the meeting results and recommendations of
the remuneration committee to the Board after each
meeting.

In 2012, the remuneration committee convened

yMEES
FNZEQm4BBUIFNTESTR2BRATESERX -
MEzESEK U EREETIZEAEEZNIMEESTRER
EEABNFMAIR  BEATESARREEEOFM
8 BEANE  RREERERBESS - REUEELER
FHEZBEMIF BENBREZRAEZSHRETM
ZEENERBERIEBRER -

v

R2012%F - HFMEZB @ BETIREZE - KERHFER

b=11I

1 meeting. Members of the remuneration committee and ~ #0 :
their attendance are as follows:
Attendance
No. of meetings
attended/
No. of meetings
held during the year Attendance
Member Name HEHEERRE Rate
REARE FHREBRH HE=
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RROESRE (£/E)

(Chairman) 1/1 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da Bl ELA 1/1 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming HBRR £ 11 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun BEELE

(appointed on 1 January 2013) (2013F1A1BZ(E) 0/0 0%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin =X RS E 11 100%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man FHGLE 1/1 100%

Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee during
the year included reviewing the remuneration structure,
remuneration policy and bonus system of the Group,
assessing performance of Executive Directors,
considering the salary adjustment for the year and making
recommendations to the Board. The remuneration
committee also ensures that no Director or senior
management member determines his own remuneration.

FNEZBEEFEMMHN TERERTEBERZFIARE -
HHER REHERERAFENFEARS  HEH
TEERA  UYAEESRIES - THEZESAURREL
BEFARAEEABBTEEEAT OB -
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The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine the
remuneration of Executive Directors and senior
management based on their responsibilities,
qualifications and working performance. No Director or
any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme as an incentive to the Directors, employees and
other eligible participants. Details of the share option
scheme are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprise four Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming
(Chairman), Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung, Mr. Fan,
Anthony Ren Da and Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun. The
nomination committee is to deal with the appointment,
re-election and retirement of Directors.

In 2012, the nomination committee convened 3 meetings.

AEENHFHBREARTEERSRERAEBRETHN
BE BERTFREMBTEMSE - REEFHEME
BAT2TFREEAGHNINE o AR RERMBEAREEILA
HBES  RBEREMAERAL - BEREFEZFECE
R A M ERAMI 20 -

REZESE
REZBRHARBIENITES - MRAKE (ER) « B
BUlSEE  ECREARBRIERLMARK - BAEER
BEENEL  BRREANEER -

v

R2012%F - IRRZBE@BEIIIREGZE - KERHFER

b=11I

Members of the nomination committee and their 1} :
attendance are as follows:
Attendance
No. of meetings
attended/
No. of meetings
held during the year Attendance
Member Name HEHESREREY Rate
RE AT FHRAERRH HE=R
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (Chairman) HIERR L £ (FE) 3/3 100%
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 2R S A 3/3 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da SBITESLE 3/3 100%
Mr. Lo, Wilson Kwong Shun mEELE
(appointed on 1 January 2013) (2013F1A1BZ(E) 0/0 0%
ROLES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT EEZS2NEEEMNAEG®

The Board is principally responsible for establishing the
development direction of the Group, formulating targets
and business development plans, approving major
agreements and matters, and monitoring the
performances of senior management. It is also
responsible for corporate governance with a view to
enhance shareholders’ value. Led by the three general
managers, the management is responsible for
implementing the strategies and plans developed by the
Board.
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The Company has developed a schedule of matters
reserved to the Board for decisions and has separately
identified those functions reserved to the Board. The
Board will review those arrangements on a regular basis
to ensure that the arrangements meet the needs of the
Company.

ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
GENERAL MANAGER

The chairman and the general manager (equivalent to
chief executive officer) have different roles. The chairman
is responsible for the operation of the Board and the
general managers are responsible for managing the
operations of the Group. Their functions have been clearly
divided to ensure a balanced distribution of power and
no authority will concentrate on a single individual.

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the chairman of the Board, is
principally responsible for leading the Board and ensures
the Board to act in the best interests of the Company.
The chairman ensures the Board to operate effectively
and perform its proper duties and discuss all important
and proper matters in a timely manner. The chairman is
responsible for convening Board meetings, consulting,
determining and approving the agenda of each Board
meeting, and ensuring that Directors are provided
sufficient information on current matters in a timely
manner. The chairman oversees the structure, number of
members and composition of the Board and makes
recommendations to the Board and the relevant
committees on any intended changes. The chairman is
also responsible for ensuring that the Company
formulates good corporate governance practice and
procedure.

ARBEAL—DRETEFTERENEIARL - ALK
BTEFTENREIFIBE  EFEeEPRIXFL
B UBREBLHNTEARBNTE -

TERBEENAEBRERE

TRENELE (ZRTRES) WARTR - TFEARES
SEE MAKEAREEAKEEY  MEZHANBRS
BIRRED - ARRENMRED MO9S - TEEREIL
AL

EXgIRRERNEE T EREREREEES
REFSTENERARENS - TRARRESTEAN
WEERBEITRERE  YEARMMEEEN BENE
HETRW TFAEAREZTE SR A EERE
BEBREZRERNSRE  THAREELEEXZENNSE
ARFEIHER - TRV BBEEHRATEETERE - AK
KA WHEMRELNESNEZTEREHLESR
hEe - TRAKAERERIFANERFNEEERFR
KAZF o

“E-CFER AREXARAR 39

O



Corporate Governance Report
ExERBRE

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, the deputy executive
chairman, an Executive Director and a general manager,
is principally responsible for the daily operation and
management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for
implementation so as to realize the Board’s objectives
and decisions. In addition, he is also responsible for the
Group’s financial reporting, internal control, material
procurement and control, logistics, customs, taxes and
legal matters and compliance, coordinating close
cooperation among all departments, uniting efforts of staff
and encouraging the initiative of staff so as to ensure
smooth and effective operation of the Company’s
operations and systems.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, an Executive Director and a
general manager, is principally responsible for the daily
operation and management of the Group’s overall
operations and implementing the Board’s operating
strategy and policy and delegating tasks to all
departments for implementation so as to realize the
Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition, he is also
responsible for research & development, production,
quality assurance and new product innovations,
coordinating close cooperation among all departments,
uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of
staff so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of
the Company'’s operations and systems.

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, an Executive Director and a general
manager, is principally responsible for the daily operation
and management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and policy
and delegating tasks to all departments for
implementation so as to realize the Board’s objectives
and decisions. In addition, he is also responsible for
supervising all personnel issues at our Nansha production
facilities, all capital equipments installation and disposal,
and overseeing all employee champions programs to
optimize costs and make sure our facilities are in full
compliance with local, international and environment laws
and standards.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are
as follows:

FATES
FMTEEREZANFEROT :

Term of Appointment

Non-Executive Directors FHITES EEFH
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang s FELT No specific term and continue until either party
serves written notice
REETEH EEHP—FBEE@mAN
Ms. Li, Yinghong AT L No specific term and continue until either party
serves written notice
BBEEFH BEEHP—FELEEBEN
Mr. Xiong Zhengfeng AR IE & 5 A4 No specific term and continue until either party

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Articles of Association, the
Board is entitled to appoint any person as Director from
time to time or at any time to fill a casual vacancy or add
a new member to the Board. On 1 January 2013, Mr. Lo,
Wilson Kwong Shun appointed as the Independent Non-
Executive Director and the members of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. For nomination, the nominee’s qualifications,
capabilities and potential to make contribution to the
Company shall be taken into consideration by the
Nomination Committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

The finance department of the Company is managed by
a qualified staff and supervised by Executive Director
and general manager, Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, who
is a U.S. certified public accountant. With the assistance
of the finance department, the Board will ensure that the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group complies with relevant regulations and
applicable accounting standards.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the audit fee and
non-audit service fee were approximately HK$635,000
and HK$185,000.

serves written notice
REBEFH BEFHEHFP—FHLREIDBA

EERSR

REBEARGNEHMERFSE  EFFHETR RNER
BEZTEEHAEAES  NWAMGH ERIIEAES
KA °c RN2013F1A1H - ZREREELERR N TEL
INITES BERLED FHWEEGNREREZELT K
8 REZECAZEHIBBALTZER gL READ
AIEEBIAE S -

BEVSE: 2
EFRRARRHIAEEEEMBREAEGHES -

ARBMBEHAAERBMEERE  YARTESMAKE
BEXBALEENREE - BALRXBENE S - £H
BERmE T EESHARANEEGE VB RERAE T
BEBER M ERN SR ER -

ZE AN £
HZE2012F12A318 LFE - BEREBRMIEBRZERNE
#635,0007T & #185,0007T °
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The statement of reporting responsibility issued by Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited, the auditor of the Company, in
respect of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the independent auditor’s report on
pages 45 to 46.

AMENDMENT TO THE ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

During the year end 31 December 2012, the Company
has amended its articles of association on 25 May 2012.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has maintained communication with its
shareholders through the annual general meeting or other
general meetings and encourages them to participate in
general meetings. Registered shareholders of the
Company receive notices of general meetings by post.
The notice of general meeting contains the agenda, the
proposed resolutions and the voting form. All
shareholders of the Company are entitled to attend the
annual general meeting and special general meetings of
the Company. Shareholders who are unable to attend the
general meeting can fill in the proxy form attached with
the notice of general meeting and return the same to the
share registrar and transfer office of the Company so as
to appoint their representatives or the chairman of the
meeting as their proxies.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to Article 68 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting can be convened on
requisitions as provided in the Companies Ordinance or
by the requisitionist. On the requisition of one or more
shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company having the right to vote
at general meetings, the Directors may convene an
extraordinary general meeting.
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Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the board.
All enquiries can be in writing and sent for the attention
of the Board of Directors, in one of the following ways:
1. By post: Raymond Industrial Limited
Rooms 1801-1803,

18th Floor, Grandtech Centre,
8 On Ping Street,

Shatin, New Territories

2. By facsimile: (852) 2341 8669

3.  Byemail: ril@rilhk.com
Procedures to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders who would like to put forward proposals at
a general meeting shall follow the procedures below.

On the requisition in writing of either i) any number of
shareholder of the Company representing not less than
one-fortieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates; or ii) not less
than 50 shareholders, the Company shall, at the expense
of the requisitionists:

a) to give to shareholders of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting;

b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice
of any general meeting sent to them any statement
of not more than one thousand words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

MEESRHEANER

BREEAEFTGIRLER - MAZHANEEL AR
Ho WATHNER—BHAX2EFZTRHWER :

1. K FMREZEBRAR
MARLH
285
FEP L 18
1801-1813%

2. BE: (852) 2341 8669

3. TBE: ril@rilhk.com

RERRAELREZEZNER

BRBERAS LIRERZMBRAREATHNER -

R)FERR T DRIEH ERE BB REZZRAAAEROA
ELRENMEBRRARZEN D2 —RENEMNAR
AIBCREE ¢ i) TP RE0BRRIAE IR H BRE - K
NEAERIATER - EARSH R B DERKE A&

=

a) RARZRKTERREFASBENAABBRREHL
AN RS EIEA IR 2 BHIE 2 VERDREE ¢

b) MARRKETMERASESHRREHAIZR—T
FHORL - AT BBZAS KRR HEMRZERAN
A EBIRNEAE LEENER
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The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary not less than 6 weeks
before the general meeting in case of a requisition
requires notice of a resolution, or not less than 1 week
before the general meeting for any other requisition.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Pui Yee (“Ms. Liu") has been appointed as the
company secretary of the Company since 1 March 2012.
Ms. Liu is responsible for ensuring that the board is fully
appraised of the relevant corporate governance
developments relating to the Group and facilitating the
professional development of the directors.

Ms. Liu has received no less than 15 hours relevant
professional training during FY 2012.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BT R &

=

BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG K7 its

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Raymond Industrial Limited

AREXERQA

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 47
to 123, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2012, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

BAREBXEERLAZERR

(REBEMPK L BRAA])

AAZEAD (AT R [Fe ) EFTHIE N B 472 123H 7
REZERAFUATHBEIERR) REMBLAR AT
EEIEEE]) MEAHBRE  UEAVBEREREER
2012F12A31HMGZEEEABRRARMNEEREGER
HEZBLFENGABER « GRE2HEBEX 54
BEEHRNGERCRERULTESHEERERE
o AR E R o

EENGRSMBBRRARKENTE

BERRMESAAARBERESMASEMN(EEYH
HBEERD RBB(RAGIDRESAMBRE - ATHE
MHEBRRIEFLEEMAFORREZEERRREGAY
BHERMVEHRIES] - AEHESMBRRIFEAR
HRFE Sk R T B B BB RS AR R

BB ARy E 1
BAWEECRREBRMANEFEZSRAMBHRRELE
R BARRBEB(RTEOD F141 FORTE - ERE
BARME o BRILASN - REAINME AT BIEE MR
BAMTRAABRENAR - EMEMATBESAEE
REME-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 HE R E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Kwan Ho, Edmond
Practising certificate number P02092

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

GRBESER

(B Z2012F 12431 HIEFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEREN)
2012 2011
Note HK$ HK$
B 5E ikl 5

Turnover EHER 3 1,278,078,943 1,175,520,127
Cost of sales $H & P AR (1,127,016,376) (1,072,173,832)
Gross profit EX 151,062,567 103,346,295
Other revenue E A 4 1,215,510 1,774,960
Other net (loss)/income HAbF (B18) M= 4 (1,584,789) 6,960,016
Selling expenses HEEHA (18,093,487) (23,051,153)
General and administrative —MRITHER

expenses (72,610,353) (64,774,540)
Profit before taxation R %% A1 5% Al 5 59,989,448 24,255,578
Income tax Frig %t 6 (12,988,212) (6,095,554)
Profit for the year and KATRER

attributable to equity A FERER

shareholders

of the Company 47,001,236 18,160,024
Earnings per share FREF 9
Basic, HK cents HAR - B 10.87 4.27
Diluted, HK cents 3 - A 10.80 4.25

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set

out in note 21(b).

The notes on pages 54 to 123

consolidated financial statements.

form part of the

BREAARR ARG F RGN BESRE AN ZREF

BERKE21(b) °
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

GEEZHERR
(Bl 22012F12A31HIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEBREN)
2012 2011
HK$ HK$
Profit for the year FERA 47,001,236 18,160,024
Other comprehensive income FEHM2EWKE :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BMERINEBRH I ERRESE
translation of financial WEH Z8 - EHRIE 2% E
statements of overseas
subsidiaries, net of nil tax (247,783) 15,540,097
Total comprehensive income ZAATRREGEE2ZHENEAE
for the year and attributable
to equity shareholders
of the Company 46,753,453 33,700,121
The notes on pages 54 to 123 form part of the #HRFES4EEF 1238 2 MsF BAEK I FELREMEREK L

consolidated financial statements. — 2D o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
(At 31 December 2012)
REEERER

(2012 12A31A 4% &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REN)
2012 2011
Note HK$ HK$
B e it i
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 11
— Property, plant and equipment — %1% - Hi/E L& E 210,526,589 222,923,885
— Interests in leasehold land — BEKEHERFEE R
held for own use under 7t HkERS
operating leases ) 9,658,012 10,076,945
Deferred tax assets EEFIEE E 13(b) 8,995,749 9,223,883
229,180,350 242,224,713
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 14 125,047,813 155,480,081
Trade and other receivables g 5 & H b e ER TR 15 273,613,609 205,732,023
Tax recoverable Al 3R B 718 13(a) - 4,044,968
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEMBEIEE 16 149,241,346 169,334,260
547,902,768 534,591,332
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables 25 R HAMERIE 17 205,674,956 239,725,930
Dividends payable FET AR B 167,502 371,149
Tax payable FERIFRIE 13(a) 12,275,212 3,007,074
218,117,670 243,104,153
Net current assets REBEEFE 329,785,098 291,487,179
Total assets less current BWEERRBERS
liabilities 558,965,448 533,711,892
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEAE 13(b) 193,033 207,037
NET ASSETS EEFE 558,772,415 533,504,855
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRE#E
Share capital A A 21(c) 216,487,130 216,103,630
Reserves s 342,285,285 317,401,225
TOTAL EQUITY MERERS 558,772,415 533,504,855

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 25 March 2013.

Wilson Wong Kin Lae

=
Director

EF

The notes on pages 54 to 123 form part of the

consolidated financial statements.
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O

Balance Sheet

(At 31 December 2012)

EERER

(20125 12A31H#E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BLBEREMN)

2012 2011
Note HK$ HK$
B e it i
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets EE&E
— Property, plant and equipment — #1% - BE K& & 11 1,524,823 2,130,512
Investments in subsidiaries B ARIEE 12 231,357,015 231,356,305
232,881,838 233,486,817
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 14 730,681 378,008
Trade and other receivables g 5 & H b e W ER IR 15 241,888,088 179,230,593
Amounts due from subsidiaries &Y KT EB A 7] BRIE 12 8,726,557 72,890,940
Tax recoverable Al 3R | 718 13(a) - 4,015,046
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEBEEE 16 102,379,103 117,151,309
353,724,429 373,665,896
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables 25 kEAMENIRIE 17 129,102,551 154,818,197
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE <t B B A B BR I8 12 28,377,998 25,835,900
Dividends payable FE{T AR B 167,502 371,149
Tax payable FERTFRIE 13(a) 2,529,793 =
160,177,844 181,025,246
Net current assets REBEEFE 193,546,585 192,640,650
Total assets less current BWEERRBERS
liabilities 426,428,423 426,127,467
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 13(b) 148,242 148,242
NET ASSETS EEFRE 426,280,181 425,979,225
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRE#E 21
Share capital % 7R 216,487,130 216,103,630
Reserves & 209,793,051 209,875,595
TOTAL EQUITY MERERS 426,280,181 425,979,225

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 25 March 2013.

Wilson Wong Kin Lae
=HEA
Director

EF

The notes on pages 54 to 123 form part of the

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

GEEREHR

(B Z=2012F12H31H 1L FE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB HEN)
PRC
statutory
Share Share Exchange Capital Retained reserve Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings H equity
K& BRARE ERfE EXRE RERA EERE Rt
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
izE ok ot it ok ok ok ot
Balance at 1 January 2011 2011514 1A 205,872,630 185,424,029 59,905,963 7,529,010 24,615,386 28,207,505 511,554,523
Changes in equity for 2011: 20115 2 EHEH
Profit for the year REE R - - - - 18,160,024 - 18,160,024
Exchange differences on BESNERH
translation of financial B RRELN
statements of overseas EXEH
subsidiaries - - 15,540,097 - - - 15,540,097
Total comprehensive income A2 E Mz 105 - - 15,540,097 - 18,160,024 - 33,700,121
Appropriation to PRC REAERERR
statutory reserve 21(d)(iv) - - - - (1,899,981) 1,899,981 -
Dividends approved in BERS
respect of
~ previous year —fi5F 21(b) - - - - (17,087,490) - (17,087,490)
— current year -AE 21(b) = - - - (8,644,145) - (8,644,145)
Shares issued under BREEET
share option scheme LR
~ gross proceeds -Ehs 21(c)(ii) 10,231,000 3,864,620 - - - - 14,095,620
- transfer from capital -HARGHRER
reserve - 2,414,016 - (2,414,016) - - -
Cancellation of share options ~ BXH B 12 - - - (163,774) - - (163,774)
Balance at M2011512A31H
31 December 2011 R2012%1A18
and 1 January 2012 216,103,630 191,702,665 75,446,060 4,951,220 15,193,794 30,107,486 533,504,855
Changes in equity for 2012: 2012E 2 EHEH
Profit for the year REF R - - - - 47,001,236 - 47,001,236
Exchange differences on MERINEBH
translation of financial IHRREEN
statements of overseas ERES
subsidiaries - - (247,783) - - - (247,783)
Total comprehensive income A& 2% AE - - (247,783) - 47,001,236 46,753,453
Dividends approved in BERS
respect of
~ previous year -fE 21(b) - - - - (17,288,690) - (17,288,690)
~ current year ~RE 21(b) - - - - (8648845) - (8648845)
Equity-settled share-based ~ EZEMMNR
payment transactions BERR S - - - 3,927,812 - - 3,927,812
Shares issued under BREBR
share option scheme el )
— gross proceeds -Eha 21(c)(ii) 383,500 140,330 - - - - 523,830
~ transfer from capital -mEAREER
reserve - 73,058 - (73,058) - - -
Cancellation of share options ~ FUBE ki - - - (431,577) 431,577 - -
Balance at R2012%12A31R
31 December 2012 216,487,130 191,916,053 75,198,277 8,374,397 36,689,072 30,107,486 558,772,415

The notes on pages 54 to 123 form part of the #HRFES4EEF 1238 2 MsF AR FLREMBEREK L
consolidated financial statements. — &b o

T FER FREXERAR 51 M)
NS




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

GEHERER

(B E2012F 12531 H IFFE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BLBEREMN)

2012 2011
Note HK$ HK$
Bt 5E i P s
Operating activities REEE
Profit before taxation B 50 AT A 59,989,448 24,255,578
Adjustments for: T
— Amortisation of interests in —HERBELEHEE
leasehold land held HEERZ
for own use under Tt A
operating leases 5(b) 413,212 413,457
- Depreciation —E 5(b) 35,514,335 32,636,373
- Equity-settled share-based — R EMN ARG
payment transactions RERR S 3,927,812 (163,774)
— Foreign exchange loss, net — & & R E 1 498,175 1,609,085
— Reversal of write-down of — B REFEEFE
inventories, net (5,423,676) (3,666,388)
— Interest income —F B WA 4 (1,215,510) (1,774,960)
— Net loss on disposal of property, —H &% - BE K&
plant and equipment 2 FEE 678,623 1,738,046
Operating profit before EEESBBIKERT
changes in working capital 94,382,419 55,047,417
Decrease/(increase) in wmA () FE
inventories 35,855,944 (26,399,504)

Increase in trade and
other receivables

(Decrease)/increase in trade

IEANE 5 N H Al e W AR IR
(R4 HEME 5K

(67,881,586)

(14,226,630)

and other payables H b fE S BRI8 (34,050,974) 54,792,569
Cash generated from operations & E4L2BEE 28,305,803 69,213,852
Tax paid: MIASH -

— Hong Kong profits tax —FBEBNET

refunded/(paid), net RE (X E) 4,183,532 (86,620)
— Overseas tax paid — BN (3,649,530) (6,090,878)
Net cash generated from RETHELEZEHSTFE

operating activities 28,839,805 63,036,354
Investing activities REEH

Payment for the purchase of
property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of

XNBEWME - BEK
&
HEWE - BE R

(24,130,477)

(48,612,045)

property, plant and equipment R & P75 FIE 216,813 341,552
Interest received FE WA 1,215,510 1,774,960
Net cash used in BRETHIHZHESFE

investing activities

(22,698,154)

(46,495,533)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

GERERER
(B Z2012F 12431 HIEFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(UBYREN)
2012 2011
Note HK$ HK$
M 5 i ok
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from shares issued BITHERER D < W
under share option scheme 523,830 14,095,620
Dividends paid SATIRE (26,141,182) (26,702,797)
Net cash used in METEHHZ
financing activities e FEE (25,617,352) (12,607,177)
(Decrease)/increase in cash (R2) #BmRER
and cash equivalents HeEHEHEH (19,475,701) 3,933,644
Cash and cash equivalents R1IA1IBZRER
at 1 January HeEHEHEH 169,334,260 161,273,936
Effect of foreign exchange INEEEEFH 2 FE
rate changes (617,213) 4,126,680
Cash and cash equivalents MR12A31AZEHER
at 31 December R&ZEIEHR 16 149,241,346 169,334,260

The notes on pages 54 to 123 form part of the EHRFELS4EEFE 1238 2MIFFRAKLEFHEETBEHRE 2
consolidated financial statements. —&#B1n °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BLBEREMN)

I  COMPANY INFORMATION

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and
has its registered office and principal place of business
at Rooms 1801 — 1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8
On Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
December 2012 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the ‘Group”).

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(‘HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. The adoption of
these amendments to HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group’s accounting policies applied in
these financial statements for the years presented.

The Group has not applied any new or revised HKFRS
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period
(see note 28).

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 27.

(LB REM)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BLBEREMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(c¢) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into
account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(f)).

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2(f)(ii)).

The cost of construction in progress includes the cost of
machinery, materials, construction expenditures and
other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to
a working condition for its intended use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, over their estimated useful lives at
the following annual rates:

Buildings held for own use which
are situated on leasehold land,
where the fair value of
the building could be
measured separately from
the fair value of the leasehold
land at the inception of
the lease (see note 2(e)(i))

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Moulds

Motor vehicles

4.0%-4.5% straight line

9.0%-18.0% straight line

9.0%-33.3% straight line

9.0% straight line

25.0% reducing balance and
18.0% straight line

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress is not depreciated until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

(e) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BLBEREMN)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(e) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, except where the land held
for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of
which cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term of 50 years. Impairment losses are
recognised in accordance with accounting policy set out
in note 2(f)(ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(f) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities
and receivables

Investments in equity securities and receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ARE M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BLBEREMN)

2

(f)
(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as detailed below:

60

For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment loss
is measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 2(f)(ii). The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 2(f)(ii).

For trade and other receivables, the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(f) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities
and receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but
not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade and other receivables directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; and

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held for own use under operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BLBEREMN)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(f) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(g) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all cost of purchases, cost of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

(h) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
2(f)(i)), except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(i) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(n)(i), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BLBEREMN)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(j) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

(k) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and to retirement benefit schemes
for the employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in The
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss as incurred.

(ii) Share-based payments
The fair value of share options granted to employees is

recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity (see note 2(l)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which the Group receives services or goods from its
directors, employees and other eligible persons as
consideration for share options of the Company. The fair
value of the services or goods received in exchange for
the grant of the share options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the share options, which
is measured at grant date using the Black Scholes model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the counterparties have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated
fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained earnings).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BLBEREMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(m) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(m) Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BLBEREMN)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(m) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price, unless
the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated) is
initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 2(n)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in respect
of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BLBEREMN)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(o) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(p) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transactions dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(g) Product development costs

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research
findings are applied to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes,
is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources and the intention to complete development.
The expenditure capitalised includes the costs of
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Development expenditure is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ARE M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BLBEREMN)
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is amember of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of the

key management personnel of the entity (or

of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(s) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

3 TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture
and sale of electrical home appliances.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied
to customers, net of discounts, returns and value added
tax or other sales taxes.

(LB REM)

2 EESFHEE @

(s) 2WHE

REDHWEIBERARE ZEDHEE ZKBIR/D
RERTAEETRER KR A K ¥ % EER MR
ZREMERRNAEEZRSRTRERERH 2 MBER
RRER

AP BHREMS - BRIERLEN B TEEH - D ELRE
BRURBERSHEEER KRB HE - £EBEHEE &
FREASER - BEDHERBRERB 2 TTENREE
RBEUEE T EABRURRIN - MY BRI ERZLEDE

BARDHWSER  BIZSELHBALEHE B -
3 EEHEE
AEEFrELBERERINERATRE -

BEERNUE AR 2 HEE - MR - REREER
A A 3B -
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AR B B =t
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(ABEBREN)
4  OTHER REVENUE AND NET (LOSS)/ 4 HWARZFE (BB W=
INCOME
2012 2011
HK$ HK$
B ket
Other revenue H g A
Bank interest income RITHMBUA 1,215,510 1,774,960
Other net (loss)/income Hit2 (B8 Wa
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HERSY (BB Kk
scrap materials (782,230) 2,400,552
Net exchange (loss)/gain & 5% (BER) ket (4,903,197) 4,090,628
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE&XEFEE
plant and equipment (678,623) (1,738,046)
Forfeiture of benefits upon REKRIERTESEE 22K
termination of a provident
fund scheme 3,305,249 =
Sample sales income AR M 2 633,708 808,014
Subsidy income 1 By U 2 525,722 721,205
Sundry income H b Uy 25 314,582 677,663
(1,584,789) 6,960,016
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R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(UBYREN)
5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 BRBIADEF
Profit before taxation is arrived after charging/(crediting): & & Bl A T3 &0% 7 (GEA) F3I R BB EE :
2012 2011
HK$ HK$
B ko
(a) Staff costs (@ EERAE
Salaries, wages and e ITEREMER
other benefits 123,907,936 164,861,245
Discretionary bonuses 1532 fE4L 2,887,000 1,345,000
Contributions to defined FHAHFGR N S 5T 243X
contribution retirement
plans 19,868,071 19,907,517
Equity-settled share-based ESENARDBERZ S
payment transactions* 3,551,567 (163,774)
150,214,574 185,949,988

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ~ *

amounted to HK$3,927,812 (2011: HK$Nil) and was
recognised in profit or loss, of which an amount of
HK$3,551,567 (2011: HK$Nil) has been included in staff
costs as the relevant share options were granted to the

AFEEEREZ AT EESEB3,927,81270 (20114 -
BB EEBEER  HARTREEREENEREN

employees and directors.

S REB1£3,551,5677C (20114 : BEZ L) EREEEEK
A o
2012 2011
HK$ HK$
B i

(b)

Other items (b) HfwiEHE

Cost of inventories sold* SHE 7 B R A

Amortisation of interests in BHBEBECEHES
leasehold land held for BHEE Bz L Es
own use under
operating leases

Depreciation e

Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRAT B &

— audit services — BRER

— non-audit services — FEZEH

Product development costs EE o R AR

1,127,016,376

1,072,173,832

Cost of inventories includes HK$145,657,055 (2011: #
HK$185,588,302) relating to staff costs, depreciation and

loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, which
amounts are also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above or in note 5(a) for each of
these types of expenses.

413,212 413,457

35,514,335 32,636,373

635,000 616,000

185,000 180,000

434,464 892,393
HEFEKRAEREENRAE  FERYME  BERRED
EBB 2 REK145,657, 0557_E (20114 : BH
185,588,3027T) * % FEMBIER it 8 £ % K izE5(a) @

FRBERREREEE -

T —FFR
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R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABHRBEMN)

6 INCOMETAX INTHE CONSOLIDATED 6 7 SH
INCOME STATEMENT
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) 4 P2 BiIA
represents:
2012 2011
HK$ HK$
it VS
Current tax — Hong Kong REEHIE — FEEMEH
Profits Tax
Provision for the year INF A (M 13(a))
(note 13(a)) 4,169,207 1,676,547
Over-provision in respect of TFEERERS
prior years (1,777,554) -
2,391,653 1,676,547
Current tax — PRC Enterprise ANFEEHIE — FECEHMEH
Income Tax
Provision for the year ANF AR (M 13(a))
(note 13(a)) 10,387,323 4,825,757
Under-provision in respect of TEEEERD
prior years 128 211
10,387,451 4,825,968
Deferred tax ERET IE
Origination and reversal of B IEYRERZMNEEREM
temporary differences (B EE13(b)(i))
(note 13(b)(i)) 209,108 (406,961)
Income tax expense FIB TS H 12,988,212 6,095,554
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R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (Continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated
at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable
profits for the year.

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the
appropriate current rate of taxation ruling at the
relevant tax jurisdictions.

Two subsidiaries in the PRC have been entitled to
preferential tax treatments in the PRC. Upon the
implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax Law
of the PRC on 1 January 2008, a five-year
transitional period had been granted to entities that
previously enjoyed the preferential tax rate of 15%,
over which the tax rate will gradually be increased
to the standard rate of 25%. The applicable rate for
these two subsidiaries in the PRC for 2012 is 25%
(2011: 24%).

The change in the carrying amount of the deferred
tax assets and liabilities, as a result of the change
in tax rate, is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

6

(LB REM)

BEBNERH T EBAFE G ERE AR =X
16.5% (20114F : 16.5%) IR BEEH -

BN B A B IR IR B R AR IS D) 2 AT R A

= o
E2T

FEHEZMENBARZESEFHRISESR  BFEA
RAMBE P ZEFRBT G E) R2008%1 8 1H £ 3K
% REBEERRIZE15%EBER R 2 AREERER
M8 A a2 ARTER A FE RIS R A r] BRSPS HE
BEZESHER  ERBABREIZEREKIS5% -
B Ff /B 2 1R 20124 By EBR i R 5 Bl B25% (2011
£ 24%) o

AR EEBHERELERAEERABZRAERRZ
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R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABHRBEMN)

6 INCOMETAX INTHE CONSOLIDATED

6 mEBTZRZMER @

INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) IRFHRABAESH S E R EEF

~—

accounting profit at the applicable tax rates:

2012 2011
HK$ HK$
ot S
Profit before taxation B 75 A A 59,989,448 24,255,578
Notional tax on profit before REMAMEBEATEFEZ
taxation, calculated at B0 AT A 2 & IR
the rates applicable to profits
in the jurisdictions concerned 13,763,101 5,399,396
Tax effect of non-deductible AR S 2 B o 2
expenses 1,718,436 1,324,501
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEFERFH U A 2 T i & (712,894) (552,034)
Effect of changes in tax rates ~ BERE{ 2 HIETE - (123,784)
Effect of temporary differences HFERZEREEZFE
not recognised (3,300) 47,264
(Over)/under-provisions in TFEEFREBZ) B
respect of prior years, net (1,777,426) 211
Others HAt 295 =
Actual tax expense ERMIBEX 12,988,212 6,095,554
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7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LB REM)

7

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

EEME

EEMeREFTELARDIZ16RKENT :

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Discretionary ~ Retirement Share-based
Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme payments 2012
fees ¢ MERH contributions  Sub-total SURHBER Total
e ZHREF ZEAL BHREHF Pt HXARS CEl
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Bl B B B B B B
Chairman £
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae BEALE 120,000 19,410 520,000 - 659,410 278,700 938,110
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BRELE 140,000 3,826,443 520,000 240,000 4,726,443 278,700 5,005,143
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin ~ EX &% 4E 140,000 3,259,410 520,000 225,000 4,144,410 278,700 4,423,110
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing SRELE 120,000 1,872,000 310,000 75000 2,377,000 278,700 2,655,700
Non-executive directors FYTES
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang g AL 120,000 - - - 120,000 111,480 231,480
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng FREBRE 120,000 - - - 120,000 111,480 231,480
Ms. Li, Yinghong TR 120,000 - - - 120,000 111,480 231,480
Independent non-executive ~ BYFHTES
directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung ~ 2BUELE 180,000 - - - 180,000 27,870 207,870
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BEELE 180,000 - - - 180,000 27,870 207,870
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming {i2RR % 4 180,000 - - - 180,000 27,870 207,870
Alternate directors REZ
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun RITHEE - 161,146 - - 161,146 74,320 235,466
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit BRAELE - - - - - 55,740 55,740
1,420,000  9,138409 1,870,000 540,000 12,968,409 1,662,910 14,631,319
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ARE M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BLBEREMN)

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 7 ZZ=&€ @)

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 ZEEESRIEE B 2 FEHIE161IEHEENT « (B)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
(Continued)

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Discretionary Retirement
Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme 2011
fees e HiEEm contributions Total
e 2H R AL BIRSHT At
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Chairman IR
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lag BHFIEE 120,000 17,540 80,000 - 217,540
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BRELE 140,000 3,247,126 200,000 184,000 3,771,126
Mr. Wong, Raymond BXELE
Man Hin 140,000 2,497,540 200,000 138,000 2,975,540
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RELE 120,000 1,390,500 150,000 61,000 1,721,500
Non-executive directors FUTES
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang BETET 120,000 = = - 120,000
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang BEHELE
(resigned on 3.1.2011) (201151 F3BB) - - - - -
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng ARIFELE
(appointed on 3.1.2011) (2011F1A3AZAE) 120,000 - - - 120,000
Ms. Li, Yinghong ZRA/ME 120,000 - = - 120,000
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Leung, Michael DR A
Kai Hung 160,000 - - - 160,000
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLERE 160,000 - - - 160,000
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming {Ri2eA %4 160,000 - = - 160,000
Alternate directors REZ
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun RHE - 161,230 - - 161,230
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit BRALE - - - - -
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng ARIFEE &
(resigned on 3.1.2011) (2011F1A3B &) - - - - -
1,360,000 7,313,936 630,000 383,000 9,686,936

Note: These represented the estimated value of share options ~ Kist : WWEEERZRARBREERETER TESNERES

granted to the directors under the Company’s share B o I ERIRANEE S 5T BER M aE2(k) (i) AR () BETR &
option scheme. The value of these share options is SNRZEE ©

measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share-based payment transactions as set out in note

2(k)(ii).
The details of these benefits in kind, including the LR FFIBREER - BIEHR RERER TEEFTHIEM
principal terms and number of options granted, are 720 °

disclosed in note 20.
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iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LB REMN)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 8 fErIExSHMAL

EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four A E507 &= ¥ B A T3 B 354467 (20114 : 3f1) = -
(2011: three) are directors whose emoluments are HEZMESESHAWE7 © % T 167 (20114F : 261) HZ= %
disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in ~ AL ZB& 2| :
respect of the other one (2011: two) individuals are as

follows:
2012 2011
HK$ HK$
et it
Salaries and other emoluments %% & E b 37 Fj 792,000 1,277,517
Discretionary bonuses B 155 35 IRAE 4L 100,000 135,000
Retirement scheme contributions &k & % 58,500 88,675
Share-based payments R D RERAOZNRZ S 46,450 =
996,950 1,501,192

The emoluments of the one (2011: two) individuals with  {ERI& = F B A 147 (20114 : 2f1) NS 4RI DT |
the highest emoluments are within the following band:

Number of individuals

A
2012 2011
HK$ Nil-HK$1,000,000 RSB =0 2 %% 1,000,0007T 1 2
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R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BLBEREMN)

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$47,001,236 (2011: HK$18,160,024) and
the weighted average number of 432,347,194 (2011:
425,124,455) ordinary shares in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

9 BREF
(a) BREXEF

ERELREF 2 FTER LMN/A G EY I EFS—E Sl
75 47,001,2367T (20114F : B #18,160,0247T) MR
FAZEE ﬁﬁﬂ%%’]ﬂxiﬂmaz 347,194 (20114 :
425,124,455) BT &

Weighted average number of ordinary shares EBERMEFLIRE
2012 2011

Issued ordinary shares M1A1EE®TZ2E

at 1 January 432,207,260 411,745,260
Effect of share options TR R R 2 52 (F7E21(c)(ii))

exercised (note 21(c)(ii)) 139,934 13,379,195
Weighted average number of 128318 2 % @& i F 5L #x

ordinary shares

at 31 December 432,347,194 425,124,455

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$47,001,236 (2011: HK$18,160,024) and
the weighted average number of 435,303,683 (2011:
427,691,266) ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

(b) BREFRRF

EREERT 2T ER AR B R E(LELE £ a7
#547,001,2367T (20114F : 518,160,024 T) K Nt F
fi% £1435,303,683 (20114F : 427,691,266) L@ :t&E -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) & i% il # 15 IR 21 (38 58)
2012 2011

Weighted average number of 128318 2 @K 2 N4 TR

ordinary shares

at 31 December 432,347,194 425,124,455
Effect of deemed issue of icg: ZINUNGILE i

shares under the Company’s NEREGIEBTRNOZZE

share option scheme (Bt 5£20)

for nil consideration (note 20) 2,956,489 2,566,811
Weighted average number of M12A31AZzE@R 2

ordinary shares (diluted) DN 9 g 2 ()

at 31 December 435,303,683 427,691,266
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i B B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

I0 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of electrical home appliances. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to
the Group’s senior management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has identified five reportable segments on a
geographical basis: Japan, United States, the PRC,
Europe and rest of the world. The electrical home
appliances are manufactured in the Group’s
manufacturing facilities located in the PRC. The “rest of
the world” segment covers sales of electrical home
appliances to customers in Australia, Canada and Hong
Kong.

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of tax balances. Segment
liabilities include trade creditors, accrued charges and
other payables, with the exception of tax balances and
dividends payable, attributable to the manufacture and
sale activities of the individual segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from other revenue and net
income, and the depreciation and amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments.

“The measurement used for reporting segment profit is
‘adjusted EBITDA" i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation”. To arrive at
adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as other head office or corporate
administration costs.

(LB REM)

10 DI/ E
AEEFEXEBERENMEERAES - BERREAEER
SETHREEAERTESBRIELRDEES T ERATERA
ZER—HBzAARE  AEESRAEREFILHME D
A BAREH - AR BUNRERSH o REFERER
HERZREEFRE - oI 2 RIS BIEHEERH
BERERMN - MERRBEBZEFE

(a) PHEE EERSHE
SHMENERASERSSETHEEASRIES BE
BRAE S BEBHIRA 2 ER— B2 TR BT
T AEEYESEAREEA S R TR RS AR
SR A AERARE -

HH ol

DHEEBEMBANEEMRDEE BTEERAER
ERE - DHAERRE S REMENFREARRER -
BABREER D ARG 2 AHEMREREMRE -

WARSTH2RAIREDBAMELE ZHERRZF)
EEZ XL E D BRI AE EA WA B I as - AN
ENMEEMEEZXE  UDEBEEZFDEE -

ME R 5 2B M FTER A 2 7504 & [E #AEEBITDA] -
FE -~ FiIE - TEREHATZLERAZRAT] - BEREFAE
EBITDA @ AN&E 2 & FIN0 &St 4s € & R (@Bl » 8 2 1B B
(B EH A BITHRAA) #E— FIEHFE -

B[R at
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R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BLBEREMN)

0 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning inter-segment sales, interest
income and expense from cash balances managed
directly by the segments, depreciation and amortisation
and additions to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations. Inter-segment sales are
priced with reference to prices charged to external parties
for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the year is set
out below.

MRS A HEEBITDAZ DR AR - B E TELRM
ERARNMEED R - MBKRARBOR  FERBHESE
Re@BnP cBRMENEREN B ZERBDOHEEL
DEER - AMOMHEEZBRSEHINFEESHZE
1& o

AR TAEESRSETHREREAES D RERLFE
DERIN BRI T -

Electrical home appliances

RREE
United States The PRC Japan Europe Rest of the world Total
EL: hE B& B A% At

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HKH000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

E8Trn #¥Tn BETn AETn RMTr A%Tr B%Tn ANt BMTn ENfn A%Tr E%Tn
Revenue from external HIRE ZHA
customers 396,228 387,034 44748 18715 400,774 407,097 302,931 230,705 133398 131969 1,278,079 1,175,520
Inter-segment revenue REGETN - - 764370 760,887 - - - - 1,182,695 1147861 1,947,065 1,908,748
Reportable segment
revenue THREFBUA 396,228 387,034 809,118 779,602 400,774 407,097 302,931 230,705 1,316,093 1,279,830 3,225,144 3,084,268
Reportable segment profit ~ TH& 2 H%R
(adjusted EBITDA) (B HZEBITDA) 29,851 15,991 3,371 774 30,193 16820 22,822 9532 318253 284635 404,490 327,752
Reportable segment assets THEDHEE - - 458,983 496,642 - - - - 462,183 635193 921,166 1,131,835
Additions to non-curent  AEREIERBAE
segment assets during BELN
the year - - 23672 48024 - - - - 458 588 24130 48612
Reportable segment THEANER
liabilities (336) (247) (113,294) (186,153) - - - - (245205) (190311) (358,835) (376,711)
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R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(R REN)

10 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 10 7 EPERE (&)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) THREDSIHUA - BR - BEEREBZHE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and
liabilities
2012 2011
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T ok
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue Al 3R & o B A 3,225,144 3,084,268
Elimination of inter-segment W &L B M A 85
revenue (1,947,065) (1,908,748)
Consolidated turnover IRAEER 1,278,079 1,175,520
Profit Y2 Al
Reportable segment profit A & 9 & F 404,490 327,752
Elimination of inter-segment &R B A1 85
profits (308,204) (279,181)
Reportable segment profit WARKBEEINE P 2 0] B o 30 F
derived from Group’s external
customers 96,286 48,571
Other revenue and net HaARF (BE) ke
(loss)/income (369) 8,735
Depreciation and amortisation — #7& K& # (35,928) (33,050)
Consolidated profit before 4R BR AT A A
taxation 59,989 24,256
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR E DB EE 921,166 1,131,835
Elimination of inter-segment A1 &8 73 5 e Wt B T8 4 8
receivables (153,079) (368,288)
768,087 763,547
Tax recoverable AR [E R IE - 4,045
Deferred tax assets RIEFIRE E 8,996 9,224
Consolidated total assets MAEREE 777,083 776,816
T FFH FNREEXBRAA 85
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

%13 %)
10 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 10 DS @)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) THREDSIHUA - BR - BEEREBZHE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and (&)

liabilities (Continued)

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities A R&E D 2R & (358,835) (376,711)
Elimination of inter-segment A EF > B FE - BR IR R 8
payables 153,160 136,985
(205,675) (239,726)
Dividends payable FET AR B (167) (371)
Tax payable FES 18 (12,275) (3,007)
Deferred tax liabilities BT IEE G (193) (207)
Consolidated total liabilities mEBAaRE (218,310) (243,311)

(c) Major customers

Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted

() XEEEF

REBEPHBZWRA > 8FF DAL A10% A

to 10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: o FAR
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T ke
Customer A BEA 408,202 416,756
Customer B EFB 245,187 267,357
Customer C BFEC 192,369 168,004
Customer D ZFED 189,064 166,565
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8RB Mt
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(L% RER)
Il FIXED ASSETS I BEEE
(a) The Group (a) A&£EHE
Interests in Interests in
leasehold leasehold
land held land held
for own for own
use under use under
finance operating
leases  Buildings Furniture, leases
RE held for fixtures and RE Total
Construction ~ EBI%#E  ownuse  Plantand  equipment Motor BEHE fied assets
inprogress  ®EER  KEEA  machinery BAH  vehicles  Subtotal  ¥{EHR fEE
ERIR ciwmERE  ZBEN RERES HELREG RE Mt ziwER  EEAH
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
Cost: A
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1A1R 12236220 5235120 183,806,662 1830895975 51,428,098 10,288,804 446,890,879 15,812,456 462,703,335
Exchange adjusiments 5 #8% 600,774 - 7635565 6128455 3,153,456 315,585 17,833,835 776,360 18,610,195
Additions 5 23,296,157 - - 4784 22494249 2816855 48,612,045 - 48612045
Transfers &Y (27,045,606) - - 15467215 11,367,874 210,517 - - -
Disposals & = - - (2114143) (10,880910)  (435,348) (13,430,401) - (13,430,401)
At 31 December 2011 120114 12A31A 9087545 5235120 191442227 203,382,286 77,562,767 13,196,413 499,906,358 16,588,816 516,495,174
At 1 January 2012 R2012E1A18 9,087,545 5,235,120 191442227 203,382,286 77,562,767 13,196,413 499,906,358 16,588,816 516,495,174
Exchange adjusiments 3% (5,160) - (92,632) (81,933) (51,302) (5204)  (236,231) (9419)  (245,650)
Additions #m 4,085,866 - - 585,032 18,774,480 685,099 24,130,477 - 24130477
Transfers &Y (8,134,555) - - 2,602,154 5352474 179,927 - - -
Disposals ik - - - (1,369,442) (4510,307)  (606,536) (6,486,285) - (6,486,289
At 31 December 2012 20124128318 5033696 5,235,120 191,349,595 205,118,097 97,128,112 13,449,699 517,314,319 16,579,397 533,893,716
T CFEHR NEBEARAT 87
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ARE M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BLBEREMN)

Il  FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
(@) The Group (Continued)

Il BEEEE @)

(a) &&KE(#E)

Interests in Interests in
leasehold leasehold
land held land held
for own for own
use under use under
finance operating
leases  Buildings Furniture, leases
BE  heldfor fixtures and RE Total
Construction ~ EBI%#E  ownuse  Plantand  equipment Motor BEHE fied assets
inprogress  ®EER  KEEA  machinery BAH  vehicles  Subtotal  ¥{EHR fEE
EEIR 2inBE  ZBEN BEREE RERRE RE Mt ozihEs  EESH
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Accumulated ZitRERTE:
amortisation
and depreciation:
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1R1A - 1465832 108,021,892 106,714,779 23596,336 6,984,840 246,783,679  5.813,007 252,596,686
Exchange adjusiments % #8% - - 4387992 2501,028 1787421 236,783 8,913,224 285407 9,198,631
Charge forthe year ~ AEEHE - 104702 8200908 14177743 8986261 1166759 32,636,373 413457 33,049,830
Disposals HE = - - (1439762) (9,576,456)  (334,585) (11,350,803) - (11,350,803)
At 31 December 2011 12011%£12/31R - 1570534 120,610,792 121,953,788 24793562 8,053,797 276982473 6,511,871 283,494,344
At 1 January 2012 201281 51A - 1570534 120,610,792 121,953,788 24793562 8,053,797 276982473 6,511,871 283,494,344
Exchange adjusiments 7 #:5% - - (57 ,444) (36,226) (21,345) (3,214)  (118,229) (3,698)  (121,927)
Charge for theyear ~ AEEHE = 104,702 8333965 12572416 13214830 1288413 35,514,335 413212 35,927,547
Disposals e - - - (1,057,826) (4,022,404)  (510,619) (5,590,849) - (5590,849)
At 31 December 2012 12012%12/31H - 167523 128,887,313 133432152 33,964,652 8828377 306,787,730 6,921,385 313,709,115
Carrying value: RERE
At 31 December 2012 #2012 124318 5033696 3559884 62462282 71685945 63163460 4,621,322 210526589 9,658,012 220,184,601
At 31 December 2011 12011£12A31R 9,087,545 3664586 70831435 81428498 52769205 5142616 222923885 10,076,945 233,000,830
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8RB MiE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(UBYREN)
Il FIXED ASSETS (Continued) I BEEE&EE®
(b) The Company (b) A27
Furniture,
fixtures and
Plant and equipment Motor
machinery T - vehicles Total
R B RERZE RE &&t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ok ok T ke
Cost: AN
At 1 January 2011 and  R2011F1HA1H &

31 December 2011 2011512 A31H 27,127,161 62,600 2,925,894 30,115,655
At 1 January 2012 MR20121H1H 27,127,161 62,600 2,925,894 30,115,655
Additions bl - - 458,717 458,717
Disposals HE - - (591,598) (591,598)
At 31 December 2012 2012128 31H 27,127,161 62,600 2,793,013 29,982,774
Accumulated REHIE

depreciation:

At 1 January 2011 MR201161 H1H 23,827,300 53,440 1,325,825 25,206,565
Charge for the year NEEE 2,373,981 4,580 400,017 2,778,578
At 31 December 2011 2011 12831H 26,201,281 58,020 1,725,842 27,985,143
At 1 January 2012 Ro012F1 A 1H 26,201,281 58,020 1,725,842 27,985,143
Charge for the year REEE 575,183 4,580 390,219 969,982
Disposals HE - - (497,174) (497,174)
At 31 December 2012 R2012F12A31H 26,776,464 62,600 1,618,887 28,457,951
Carrying value: IR RHE ¢
At 31 December 2012 M2012%12H31H 350,697 = 1,174,126 1,524,823
At 31 December 2011 12011 12831H 925,880 4,580 1,200,052 2,130,512
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R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LAB¥REMN)

O

|1 FIXED ASSETS (Continued) I BEEE @
(c) The analysis of carrying value of () MEREEREINUT :
properties is as follows:
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
HK$ HK$
B S
Medium-term leases FEIEE
—in Hong Kong — BB 11,628,188 12,518,780
- outside Hong Kong — BB 64,051,990 72,054,186
75,680,178 84,572,966
Representing: 4K -
Buildings held for own use B1EE AEEY 62,462,282 70,831,435
Interests in leasehold land held RIFGFEREREEE B
for own use under 2 i iER
finance leases 3,559,884 3,664,586
Interests in leasehold land held RIBFKLEHEREEE R
for own use under operating 2 iR
leases 9,658,012 10,076,945
75,680,178 84,572,966

12 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE 12 MIBRARKREREW B AT RE

FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

KA F]

2012 2011

HK$ HK$

B i

Unlisted shares, at cost JE LMD - AR ASR 232,137,582 232,136,882
Less: impairment loss B OREEE (780,567) (780,577)
231,357,015 231,356,305

Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEU B A 71 BRIE 46,461,093 110,625,476

Less: impairment losses W OREEE

(37,734,536)

(37,734,536)

8,726,557

72,890,940

Amounts due to subsidiaries FES BB 2 RIBRIE

(28,377,998)

(25,835,900)

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, [EYW FENHBARRELEER @ 2ENIRETEEE -

interest free and repayable on demand.
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R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

12 INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets
or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated.

(LB REM)

12 B A RIREREW B QR ERIE

(%)

FEAGHE XSG BERABZHMBRRAFRENOT © K

KRG - IS AEZBRERE R -

Proportion of

ownership
Particulars of interest
issued and held by
Place of Place of paid up capital the Company Principal
Name of company incorporation  operation B®TR ATFEE activities
RE BB =E fif 3t B R BEREZFE MEEEZLLE FEXEK
Guangzhou Conquest The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% Manufacture
Electric Company s R US$7,390,000 and sale of
Limited * AR electrical home
BEM RS RAE % 7,390,000% 7T appliances
BRAE SENHERA
B
Mass Top Corporation British Virgin Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Property holding
Islands B 1RERRERI1ET wEYZE
REBRYS
Raymond Electric Hong Kong Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$10 100% Trading of
(China) Limited BB BB i EBARFAR1074TT electrical home
FRBHEE appliances
(R El) BRRAA XAEHRES
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% Manufacture
Electrical Appliances e US$22,380,000 and sale of
Development Company R E AR electrical home
Limited * 22,380,000 7T appliances
NME (BEBEY) BRERE HERHERA
BRAR £
# The statutory financial statements of Guangzhou Conquest ~ * ENRIRAERERARRIE (FEEL) ERERE

Electric Company Limited and Raymond (Panyu Nansha)
Electrical Appliances Development Company Limited for
the financial year ended 31 December 2012, prepared
under generally accepted accounting principles
applicable in the PRC, have been audited by B/ ¥ &

TR EB T AR A A

RAREZE2012F12H31 8 L2 FEMBRKRIZT BH &
SRR EEBMENEDEHMELMERARER

T —FFR
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R B Miat
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LLB¥REN)
I3 INCOMETAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 13 REEEBERNFEH
(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet () EEEBERZMEH
represents:
The Group The Company
rEEH ¥
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
il B B ok
Provision for the year REEBE
(note 6(a)) (Ff7x6(a))
- Hong Kong Profits Tax ~— BB FTSH 4,169,207 1,676,547 4,102,870 1,610,633
- PRC Enterprise — FEGEMED
Income Tax 10,387,323 4,825,757 - -
14,556,530 6,502,304 4,102,870 1,610,633
Provisional tax paid B
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — &S 5% (1,663,768) (95,836) (1,597,855) =
- PRC Enterprise — B EMST
Income Tax (642,328) (1,818,683) - -
(2,306,096) (1,914,519) (1,597,855) -
12,250,434 4,587,785 2,505,015 1,610,633
Balance of income tax TEEMEH
provisions to prior years B {5 EE 24,778 (5,625,679) 24,778 (5,625,679)
12,275,212 (1,037,894) 2,529,793 (4,015,046)
The Group The Company
rEE RATE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B ok il ioksct
Tax recoverable REEBER
recognised in E#R
the balance sheet AR E IR - 4,044,968 - 4,015,046
Tax payable recognised WREEBBXRDHER
in the balance sheet Z ERELIE (12,275,212) (3,007,074) (2,529,793) =
(12,275,212) 1,037,894 (2,529,793) 4,015,046
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iR B M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LB REM)

13 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 13 REEABERNAER @
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) ERAREEHREBEERAE
recognised:
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B ok it VS
Net deferred tax assets REEBEBEREER
recognised in ZIEETRIEE E
the balance sheet (8,995,749) (9,223,883) - -
Net deferred tax liabilities R & E & ERC HER
recognised in ZIEERIEAE
the balance sheet 193,033 207,037 148,242 148,242
(8,802,716) (9,016,846) 148,242 148,242
(i) The Group (i) *=£H
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities AFEERGAEBEABRTOHRZELHE (BE) /&
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the B K HE S 2 FEIBFWT -
movements during the year are as follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of
the related Other
depreciation temporary
Deferred tax arising from: Tax loss EER differences Total
EEZEYEH: HEEE AREBERE HUEEESR &5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ok ok otess VS
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1A1H (209,448) (7,992) (7,999,678) (8,217,118)
Effect of changes in HREFyH w8
exchange rates - - (892,767) (892,767)
Charged/(credited) to TR M s B8 2 k7
profit or loss (note 6(a)) (Gt A) (KizE6(a)) (14,447) 60,107 (452,621) (406,961)
At 31 December 2011 MR2011612H31H (223,895) 52,115 (8,845,066) (9,016,846)
At 1 January 2012 R20126F1 A 1H (223,895) 52,115 (8,845,066) (9,016,846)
Effect of changes in HREgyH w8
exchange rates - - 5,022 5,022
Charged to profit or loss 7 |3k & 18 2 Bk
(note 6(a)) (Pt zE6(a)) 27,655 162 181,291 209,108
At 31 December 2012 MR2012%12H31H (196,240) 52,277 (8,658,753) (8,802,716)

At 31 December 2012, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax liabilities relating to temporary differences

R2012F12A31H » AEBEFRE T =2 M AR 2 EE
T8 B (& B E 28 1 15,0007T (20114 - BRI o

of HK$15,000 (2011: HK$Nil).
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R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABHRBEMN)

13 INCOMETAX INTHE BALANCE SHEET
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised (Continued):

(ii) The Company
The Company’s deferred tax liabilities arise from

depreciation allowances in excess of the related
depreciation. There were no movements during the year.

14 INVENTORIES
(a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise:

13 REERERVFAER @)

(b) ERAECERREEREE (B :

(i) Z&27

AEENMIAEERBRETEER ZEEHRAREMNE
REXRBFERANERITE - NRFEREEY -

14 =FE
(a) REEEBXREESRE

The Group The Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Raw materials JRAF 70,140,640 81,230,808 730,681 378,008
Work in progress B an 54,778,645 74,249,273 - =
Finished goods EEPK i 128,528 = - =
125,047,813 155,480,081 730,681 378,008
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) FELEZHMERIRREBEAWT :
recognised as an expense is as follows:
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
HK$ HK$
B s

Carrying amount of FEHEREE
inventories sold

Write-down of inventories HFERE

Reversal of write-down eSO RIENEE

of inventories

1,132,440,052
627,307

1,075,840,220
2,825,290

(6,050,983) (6,491,678)

1,127,016,376  1,072,173,832
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R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(LB REM)

I5 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 BESZKkEMEWERIE
The Group The Company
AEH AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
et ikt it i
Trade debtors B HEHA 254,246,605 180,717,571 238,046,797 172,162,641
Other debtors HAbEEA 5,192,564 11,032,297 1,808,018 5,160,344
Deposits and prepayments &] & K& 8 15 FAE 14,174,440 13,982,155 2,033,273 1,907,608
273,613,609 205,732,023 241,888,088 179,230,593

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from certain
deposits amounting to HK$2,284,194 (2011:
HK$2,491,273), are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expenses within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of trade debtors as of the balance
sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows:

FiEE 5 hEMEWERIE @ BREMDIZE SR B2 284,194
JC (20114F : B2 491,2737T) 9 + HBRRA 14 R AT Yk [0 5 7
REEMR -

(a) BRER D #T

REERBREEHESBEBAZKRRIEZEZASS TN
T

The Group The Company
AEH P N/NE|
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
po s ikt e i
Current K HA 209,643,718 161,292,188 193,443,910 152,737,258
Less than 1 month w1 E A
past due 40,349,054 16,699,286 40,349,054 16,699,286
1 to 3 months past due  #Hi11E A £31E A 1,061,004 1,751,892 1,061,004 1,751,892
More than 3 months but @ Ei R @ 31E 5
less than 12 months B ) 12(8 A
past due 2,976,798 960,335 2,976,798 960,335
More than 12 months wERR B 1218 A
past due 216,031 13,870 216,031 13,870
Amounts past due peng i} 44,602,887 19,425,383 44,602,887 19,425,383
254,246,605 180,717,571 238,046,797 172,162,641

Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the date
of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are
set out in note 23(a).

BHEBARBEHRZERBRLI0EIORNEH - AEEZE
EHRFEHNME23(a) ©
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R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BLBEREMN)

I5 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is
as follows:

15 ESFNKEMEIWIRIE @)

(b) REBEZEZEHLA

BRBEBAZREA TR AN EMBERAT

The Group The Company
rEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
L ki L ik
Neither past due nor R B 8 B R B
impaired 209,643,718 161,292,188 193,443,910 152,737,258
Less than 1 month w DR 1E A
past due 40,349,054 16,699,286 40,349,054 16,699,286
1 to 3 months past due  #Hi11E A £31E A 1,061,004 1,751,892 1,061,004 1,751,892
More than 3 months but % Hi & @ 31E A
less than 12 months B R12(E A
past due 2,976,798 960,335 2,976,798 960,335
More than 12 months 61 HA R 3B 1216 A
past due 216,031 13,870 216,031 13,870
Amounts past due BES R 44,602,887 19,425,383 44,602,887 19,425,383
254,246,605 180,717,571 238,046,797 172,162,641

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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6 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LB REM)

le RERBRESEHEEHR

The Group The Company
REE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
i Ve i Ve
Bank deposits RITEHER 62,458,091 23,261,756 62,458,091 23,261,757
Cash at bank and in hand $R1TERNIE & 86,783,255 146,072,504 39,921,012 93,889,552
149,241,346 169,334,260 102,379,103 117,151,309
|7 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 17 EZRHEMEBNERIE
The Group The Company
rEME RAFE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
it i il ke
Trade creditors B oEREAN 159,971,577 191,170,540 116,628,399 142,409,695
Accrued charges and ENERAR
other payables H b fE < BRI 45,703,379 48,555,390 12,474,152 12,408,502
205,674,956  239,725930 129,102,551 154,818,197

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be

settled within one year.

The ageing analysis of trade creditors as of the balance

BB S KEMENRBEMFERN -

REEABRGEAEZERAZKRRZEZAHOTN

sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows: T~
The Group The Company
AEE IRAF]
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
s ki it 5
Due within 1 month 118 A A 2| 25
or on demand BR-E 157,863,318 188,354,243 116,556,835 141,092,070
Due after 1 month but 1& A &8 3@ A
within 3 months A 21| 58 1,237,290 2,116,506 56,051 1,317,625
Due after 3 months 31E A& E121E8 A
but within 12 months A £ R 599,842 505,082 - -
Due after 12 months 121E A 1% 21 &1 271,127 194,709 15,513 =
159,971,577 191,170,540 116,628,399 142,409,695
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R B M &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BLBEREMN)

I8 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLANS

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The scheme is defined
contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior to June 2012). Contributions
to the plan vest immediately upon the completion of
service in the relevant service period.

In addition to the MPF Scheme, the Group’s employees
in Hong Kong previously, after completing half a year of
service, had the option to join the Group’s defined
contribution provident fund scheme which was managed
by an independent trustee. The Group made monthly
contributions of 5%-10% of the employees’ basic salaries
to the scheme depending on the employees’ years of
service with the Group. The employees also made
monthly contributions of 5% of the employees’ basic
salaries to the scheme. The employees were entitled to
receive their entire contributions together with accrued
interest thereon at any time upon leaving the Group, and
100% of the employer’s contributions and the accrued
interest upon retirement or leaving the Group after
completing sixteen years of service or at a reducing scale
of between 5% to 90% after completing three to fifteen
years of service. The forfeited contributions made by the
Group and related accrued interest could be used to
reduce the employer’s contributions. Such scheme was
terminated in April 2012. During the year, the aggregate
amount of employer’s contributions made by the Group
to the scheme was approximately HK$85,950 (2011:
HK$445,840). Upon the termination of the scheme, the
forfeiture of benefits amounting to HK$3,305,249 was
credited to profit or loss as income.
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R B F &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

I8 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLANS (Continued)

At 31 December 2012, certain employees of the Group
had completed the required number of years of service
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the
“Ordinance”) and are eligible for long service payments
on termination of their employment. The Group is only
liable to make such payments when the termination meets
the required circumstances specified in the Ordinance
and the employees’ entitlement is not covered by the
aforesaid provident funds. At 31 December 2012, the
Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme and the
accrued interest thereon exceeded the potential liabilities
should the required circumstances specified in the
Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC employees are required to make
contributions based on certain percentages of the
applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC and the relevant government
authorities undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

19 BANKING FACILITIES

At 31 December 2012, the Group had unsecured
revolving banking facilities of HK$88,150,000 (2011:
HK$68,150,000). The banking facilities include
documentary letters of credit, trust receipt, bill payables,
trade loans and trade guarantee. The amount utilised by
the Group as at 31 December 2012 under these facilities
was HK$6,277 (2011: HK$11,548).

(LB REM)

18 SREMRFERKEE @)

20126 12A318  A5ERED B THRFFHEES
BBEEGEG (TEH) MiEE  EHEARTEARAIEZES
REARBE - AMERKIEEZBET AEBEEANZ
BEEAZEINBSZRRETREIMNERERIEEHZE
B o HATEMA LGN 2 8 TBER - AEEE2012F 128
BIBEAELHEIPEFZRBELZNMEFIREZ BER

F o

AEEETENMNBLARTEATEBEAZBB TRIER
RERET S - A IR EBRAFEBEFIGEE - AEEK
ETRRUFAIRESREABHF I —Ea o LLEHH
H o MAEBRFAGHEAEASBETENMEARZER
BRAFERKRE T ZRKEHNEE -

19 SRITEERE

2012128318 » AEEMIRTTES Z EAIEKTEERE
B4 55188,150,0007T (20114 : ##68,150,0007T) ©
RITZEERELARERE - EalE  BEREE - &
SERREZER - ARHEREEREE N ABEE,277T
(20114F : #B¥11,5487T) °
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20 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6 June 2003 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite (i)
directors, employees of any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder of the Company (“Controlling
Shareholder”) or any company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder; (ii) holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any Controlling Shareholder of
the Company or any company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder; and (iii) (a) any business or joint venture
partner, contractor, agent or representative of, (b) any
supplier of goods or services to, or (c) any customer or
distributor of goods or service of, any member of the
Group or any Controlling Shareholder or a company
controlled by a Controlling Shareholder; to take up options
to subscribe for shares of the Company. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is paid by these participants
for each lot of share options granted. The options are
exercisable from the date of grant within a period of eight
to ten years. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as
follows:

20 EZENURGB/ERRS

NAFR2003F6 A6 B IERIERTE - NARESER
ERERERT()VAEBETMKE A AR R 2 2R
B R iR RATIEFIZ AR ZES « S
(A AEBEMKE  1EIRARR K IE IR R ATIEH 2 A
RIFTEIT 2 EMEFZFHEA 5 Kii)a)E X5k A (B
el REBERREK  (b)EREmIAREHER ;
H(C)EMBEFERDHE - TIASBEEAK S SIERA R L
FRIERAR RIS 2 E R AR  (TEERERE AR AR
T o 2FALTUBBAT 2 REUSINRES —HEERE -
BRI T HAR R IR H B EEI8E10F A - HF1ERE T15
BAZENREARR — KT @AEAGRE

(a) EAFERTZIERNT - AAEBRELERR
N2 BAgER -

Contractual life

Number of of options
instruments BB R
IEHE BNFH
Options granted to directors: EERTES
—on 21 June 2005 — 120056 H21H 10,660,000 8 years
— on 30 June 2008 — 7200846 A30H 23,461,488 10 years
— on 6 October 2009 — 12009 10A6H 18,901,488 10 years
—on 20 July 2012 — 201247 H20H 17,900,000 10 years
Options granted to employees: HERERTES :
—on 21 June 2005 — 120056 H21H 6,371,000 8 years
— on 30 June 2008 — 7200846 A30H 9,830,000 10 years
— on 6 October 2009 — R 2009 10H6H 16,085,000 10 years
—on 20 July 2012 — 201297 H20H 20,330,000 10 years
Options granted to other eligible persons: ERERTEEBAL
—on 21 June 2005 — 720056 H21H 770,000 8 years
— on 30 June 2008 — 7200846 A30H 6,095,000 10 years
— on 6 October 2009 — 12009 10H6H 4,400,000 10 years
—on 20 July 2012 — 1201297 H20H 4,050,000 10 years
Total share options Ha T P e 138,853,976
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(LB REM)

20 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 20 BEREMNUROCAEERRTS @)
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices  (b) BRREZ #E M MEFHITEBOT ¢
of share options are as follows:
2012 2011
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
n#EFEH fB IR AE i B R 12
TEE ZEE T6EE ZHE
HK$ 000 HK$ ‘000
bl TR g T 1%
Outstanding at the FARITRE
beginning of the year 0.885 38,465 0.824 60,267
Granted during the year AFEERT 0.690 42,280 = =
Exercised during the year RNEE17{# 0.683 (767) 0.689 (20,462)
Forfeited during the year 7RG JE k3% 0.813 (3,455) 1.136 (1,340)
Outstanding at REE IERITHE
the end of the year 0.783 76,523 0.885 38,465
Exercisable at NEE IEAT 1T
the end of the year 0.783 76,523 0.885 38,465

The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had an
exercise price of HK$0.690, HK$0.630, HK$0.910 and
HK$2.425 (2011: HK$0.630, HK$0.910 and HK$2.425)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 7.7
years (2011: 6.6 years).

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value
of the share options granted is measured based on a
Black Scholes model. The contractual life of the share
option is used as an input into this model. Expectations
of early exercise are incorporated into the Black Scholes
model.

R20125F 1231 B RI1TEEARE 2 17#(E &5 %0.690
JC ~ /5#0.6307T © B H0.9107T B EE2.4257T (20114F ¢
B #0.6307T  B¥0.9107T KB 2. 42570) R N#EFH &%
TELFEZ7.75F (20114 : 6.6%F) °

() EBREZAFERRES
SRR BB R T 12 X 2 RIS 2 X AT 2 E PRk i s R
RFEME - ARBEREZ G A FEDREHFER
e - BREZANFHRDE/LAERA 2B AR - BH
RETENEAREHER -
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20 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 20 ERENURDAEHRRS @
PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (/) BREZAFERBR (&)

(Continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

BhEz A FERMRR

Date of grant

FEFHH
21 June 30 June 6 October 20 July
2005 2008 2009 2012
20055 20084 20094 20124
6H21H 6H30H 10A6H 7H20H
Fair value at REEH82
measurement date NEE HK$0.3884/8 7T HK$0.13685/%8 7L HK$0.11295/87C  HKS$0.0929% 7T
Share price M% (B HK$2.4000/8 70 HK$0.900007%7c HK$0.61000/87C  HK$0.6900/% 7T
Exercise price Rl HK$2.4250/% 0 HK$0.91000/ 7L HK$0.63000/%7C  HK$0.69007% T
Expected volatility TEHR 1R
(expressed as weighted (AEHFEXIBT
average volatility FEFTA I
used in the modelling FHRERT)
under the Black
Scholes model) 8.46% 36.94% 44.579% 33.073%
Option life R EE
(expressed as weighted (AEHEXIET
average volatility R EFTA IngE
used in the modelling FHRERT)
under the Black
Scholes model) 2 years® 3 years®F 3 yearsF 3 years®F
Expected dividends T8 HARR B 6.80% 6.67% 8.20% 6.687%
Risk-free interest rate A [ e I 2
(based on 3-year (RIFINEESES)
Hong Kong Exchange
Fund Notes) 3.28% 2.87% 0.931% 0.182%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the
share option grants.
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2|1 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:

(LB REM)

21 B ERRE
(a) BEFAMNHHEE

7R SR B4R & R 2 A B M8 4B B BB 40 B9 H 00 70 R OR 4 kO B
R BN EEEaEEER o TREIIARFEREmE
R BB F W) R R B YRS -

The Company b YN
Share Share Retained Capital Total
capital premium earnings reserve equity
B RAEE BEEA EAGE B R
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
iz B A B B B

At 1 January 2011 R2011%181H 205,872,630 185,005,197 20,468,286 5,989,045 417,335,158
Changes in equity for 2011: 011 FERED .
Profit and total RERTIR

comprehensive income 2ENELEE

for the year - - 20,307,640 - 20,307,640
Dividends approved in PR E

respect of the

- current year —KE 21(b)(i) - - (8,644,145) - (8,644,145)

— previous year ~fF 21(b)(ii) - = (17,037,490) - (17,037,490)
Shares issued under share BRECE BN

option scheme

- gross proceeds -Eh& 10,231,000 3,864,620 - - 14,095,620

~ transfer from capital reserve -MEAREEY - 1,709,569 - (1,709,569) -
Cancellation of share options B RE - - - (77,558) (77,558)
At 31 December 2011 and R2011%12A31H

1 January 2012 R2012%1A1H 216,103,630 190,579,386 15,094,291 4,201,918 425,979,225
Changes in equity for 2012; 012EHEE
Profit and to RERHR

comprehenswe income FENEEE

for the year - - 19,706,215 - 19,706,215
Dividends approved in BERE

respect of the

— current year -AE 21(b)(i) = = (8,648,845) - (8,648,845)

- previous year —fF 1(b)(ii) - - (17,288,690) - (17,288,690)
Equity-settled share-based BEER AR

payment transactions* BRERR S - 1,123,279 208,053 4,677,114 6,008,446
Shares issued under share E%HXTEE?‘HZM

option scheme

- gross proceeds - Elhis 383,500 140,330 = - 523,830

~ transfer from capital reserve -HERFEEY - 73,058 - (73,058) -
Cancellation of share options ek RE - - 431,577 (431577) -
At 31 December 2012 20125124 31H 216,487,130 191,916,053 9,502,601 8,374,397 426,280,181

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions of the
Company comprise the grant of 42,280,000 share options
to the Group’s employees and other eligible persons on
20 July 2012 and the financial impact of the share options
grant to the employees of a subsidiary in previous years
that was previously accounted for by the Group but not
by Company.

* S EN ARG AERR 5 BIEE2012F7 208 F £
BB RHEMA B ALT42,280,0000% 8 A% # K AT R AL
EmM AT ARRIEREE 2R THBARES 2 BRENIER
@,
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(SsMRE )

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 21 BEXR - #FERKRE (&
(Continued)

(b) Dividends (b) KE

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of (i) AFEEMBREEARQTBRREMN
the Company attributable to the year

2012 2011
HK$ HK$
Interim dividend declared EE M Rk 2 HRE
and paid of 2 HK cents per TR E AR 211l
ordinary share (20114F : FRRE@EARABE2(L)
(2011: 2 HK cents per
ordinary share) 8,648,845 8,644,145
Final dividend proposed after REEBEXREEHERES
the balance sheet date of REAIR B iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂxﬁ%‘ﬁ%m
5 HK cents per ordinary share ~ (20114F : BiX & @IS E4(00L)
(2011: 4 HK cents per
ordinary share) 21,648,713 17,288,290
30,297,558 25,932,435

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheetdate REEBBREZHEESRSMHREERTIREREEARE
has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet XREZHAREREEE ©
date.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of (i) REFEEMREEAATIRREGRELAFERD

the Company attributable to the previous #ER 2
financial year, approved and paid during the
year
2012 2011
HK$ HK$
B S
Final dividend in respect of FEFEERMEEARFEEHER
the previous financial year, XA B AR B AR S B4l
approved and paid during (20114 : FRLBABEEAL)
the year, of 4 HK cents per
ordinary share
(2011: 4 HK cents per
ordinary share) 17,288,690 17,037,490
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(BB HEN)
21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 20 EXR - EBEERE @®
(Continued)
(c) Share capital () B=A&
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZERSBITHRA
2012 2011
Number of Number of
shares HK$ shares HK$
BEHE pided ferEs = i
Authorised: EIE -
Ordinary shares of BRBERA
HK$0.50 each T 1,000,000,000 500,000,000 1,000,000,000 500,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued @R @ © 1T
and fully paid: R#Z
At 1 January ®1A18 432,207,260 216,103,630 411,745,260 205,872,630
Shares issued under AR E 1T 2 D
share option scheme 767,000 383,500 20,462,000 10,231,000
At 31 December M12A31H 432,974,260 216,487,130 432,207,260 216,103,630

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

(ii) Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2012, options were
exercised to subscribe for 767,000 (2011: 20,462,000)
ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of
HK$523,830 (2011: HK$14,095,620). The related
weighted average share price at the time of exercise was
HK$0.78 (2011: HK$0.88).

BRRBAEABEIRKERAEROKE - XHERNAE
EeZ tREN—FRRERR - MEEBRREASENR
BETHARFMHA -

(i) BREZTZRG

B E2012F12A31HFE IE - ARKR(EE%523,8307T
(20114 : ¥ 14,095,6207T) 7715 I8 JX 42 8 E 767,000%
NE)EAAL (20114 : 20,462,0000% & i@A%) - 1T HN
T (B AB0.7870 (20114 : 5#0.887T) °
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
(c) Share capital (Continued)

21 BEXR - F#HERRKRE @)

() B& @)

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (iii) REEABRRGAEHZARIBRAITENERE
options at balance sheet date
Exercise 2012 2011
Exercise period price Number Number
TR TREE BE BE
21 June 2005 to 5 June 2013 2005F6H21B & HK$2.4257% 7T 960,000 1,015,000
20136 H5H
30 June 2008 to 29 June 2018 20084 6H30H & HK$0.910/ 7T 26,625,600 28,525,600
201856 H29H
6 October 2009 to 2009F10H6HB & HK$0.6307% 7T 7,335,000 8,925,000
5 October 2019 20195F10H5H
20 July 2012 to 19 July 2022 2012F7H20B & HK$0.6907% 7T 41,603,000 -
202247 A 19H
76,523,600 38,465,600

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. Further details of these
options are set out in note 20.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium reserve

The application of the share premium account is governed
by Section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(ii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the consolidated
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with accounting policies set out
in note 2(p).
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Group and other eligible
persons recognised in the accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 2(1).

(iv) PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the PRC
enterprises, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries,
which are wholly foreign-owned enterprises, are required
to allocate at least 10% of their after-tax profit but before
dividend distribution to general reserve until the reserve
has reached 50% of their registered capital. The general
reserve can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.
Appropriation to general reserve during the year amounted
to approximately HK$Nil (2011: HK$1,899,981).

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$9,502,601 (2011: HK$15,094,291).
After the balance sheet date, the directors proposed a
final dividend of 5 HK cents per ordinary share (2011: a
final dividend of 4 HK cents per ordinary share) amounting
to HK$21,648,713 (2011: HK$17,288,290). This dividend
has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet
date.

(LB REM)

21 BAX > EERKRE @

(d) EEZHEERE®N ()

(iii) EAXRE
BRAREERERESTBORME2() R A AR R ERE T
NEAEBERHEMABRALTZEER AT RTTRBRER
ENAFERER -

(iv) HBUEERE

KBRHPEAREFMBEZZZRBEHEEZER  ALH
ZHENBARBIIEBELE BRI 10%D 2 Fik
@ﬂ%mﬂ%%ﬁﬁ BEEZABEFMELRNS0% A
IF - TBRFEERULEEBE B ERN K REEE
ma$o$¢§ DA E E B 2 BREA BB E T (2011
& 5#1,899,9817T) °

(e) AoEiEME

R2012% 128318 E51A[ 5 m%$ﬁﬂhiz%ﬁi@ﬁ
7&519,5602,6017T (20114F : #%15,094,2917T) - REEH
BREZH®E @ EFER E&X%Etwi% 5 785 B 511l
(20114 : REAB R LAEBBEAW) - G5B
mﬁmjwﬁ@mvi'iﬁéﬁﬁwﬂzwzwﬁ)ﬂ%
EEABREEHELERERERAEE
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
(f) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
judgements to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total debt (which includes trade and other payables)
plus unaccrued proposed dividends. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

During 2012, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2011, was to maintain the net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio of no more than 42% (2011: 50%). In order
to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.
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(A% R E )
21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 21 BEXR - REERRE @®
(Continued)
(f) Capital management (Continued) (f) EXRERE#E)
The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 December 120129 2011412 A31H 2 F & FE AT K L5
2012 and 2011 was as follows: mr
The Group The Company
AEE b N
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
s ok it ok
Current liabilities: mEnafE
Trade and other payables & 5 Kk H At fE{FHRIE 205,674,956 239,725,930 129,102,551 154,818,197
Add: Proposed dividends fi @ &% K 2% B 21,648,713 17,288,290 21,648,713 17,288,290
Net debt EEFE 227,323,669 257,014,220 150,751,264 172,106,487
Total equity B 558,772,415 533,504,855 426,280,181 425,979,225

2RI AR

Less: Proposed dividends

(21,648,713)

(17,288,290)

(21,648,713)

(17,288,290)

Adjusted capital KABER 537,123,702 516,216,565 404,631,468 408,690,935
Net debt-to-adjusted FAEHEARRAN
capital ratio B £k 4 42% 50% 37% 42%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are ANRARREMERAREBIEZINRBKRERERNFTE -
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
—E——FFHR MNREEERAR
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(BLBEREMN)

22 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
2012 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements were as follows:

22 JRIE

(a) M2012F12A31B4RE M RELBIRENARGTE
AEYER

The Group The Company
AEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ik Ve i Ve
Contracted for: B4
— Construction work —RETIE - 135,619 - -
— Purchase of equipment — B B &5 M8 A
and moulds 1,664,067 6,104,759 - -
1,664,067 6,240,378 - -

23  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash
and cash equivalents and trade debtors. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the balance sheets.

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The credit risk is limited as the majority of
counterparties are financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies
or stated-controlled financial institutions with good
reputations.
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk and concentration risk
(Continued)

In respect of trade debtors, management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group and the
Company does not obtain collateral from customers.
Management considers the aggregate risks arising from
the possibility of credit losses are limited and to be
acceptable.

The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also have an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the
balance sheet date, the Group and the Company have a
certain concentration of credit risk as 22% (2011: 26%)
and 24% (2011: 28%); and 76% (2011: 74%) and 80%
(2011: 77%) of the trade debtors was due from the largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.
Management does not expect any significant losses from
trade debtors that have not been provided for other than
the impairment loss on bad and doubtful debt as set out
in note 15.

(LB REM)

23 BIREREERAFE®

(a) FERMRREESRERE @)

HESEHAME  EEEEMENEERE X EFE
EEMASNEERR - HRAEERBBRETEESR
ZEPHGETEMNEENE - MEFFEETEHHEETL N
ERHE 2 BN LELBRRNENED - YEEFFHE
AEREEFPENEERENER - 85 RUGKIARHE
HEREE B EF30-9008 AEIH - @ — A Z BUKARRAE
# - BRFE2BEENIERTEAEMESR - AEE—K
TeREFPWERERR - EAST®H  EEERRHE
EZEERBELZ RFTRRBRARRAIER -

REBRARGB AR EERR  FEXSEF Z@E7|
HEMTE BPEEMEZTERBRRZBERBR I
ZEERR - EFERERD  cREER  AEERAR
BN AAREFEME SESEARIE22% (20114F : 26%) K
24% (20114F : 28%) i K76% (20114 : 74%) }80%
(20114F : 77%) ' WAEASX —ERENEESTRK - 182
ETHZE ZEH AR B EMEKRNEENSZEHR T EN
157 2 ERR AR ©
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and
the Company’s financial liabilities which are based on
the contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments, computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet
date) and the earliest date the Group and the Company
can be required to pay:

23 MBEREERATVE®

(b) EEREMHER

AEEBET2EANEXBERAESESEREEERE &
ERPREBRRERENERNENREFTR - AEE
ZBRBERERRF RARH R IET R - AEREE
FREARSHEBRAANSLEZR 2ES - WEDEEH
REBRRBUERK -

TRINBAEERARRZITEECRABBERNEERZ
HRTEMBRFE - ERENGNLAEBRRZRER
(BEBRBOEZME M FBFERFENEER - 5
BZHB)RAEBRARBZREFEER Z AHFE :

(i) The Group (i) *5%5H
2012 2011
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
undiscounted 6 months undiscounted 6 months
cash flow or on cash flow or on
Carrying  #FHREH demand Carying @& RAH demand
amount MIREHE  6AARD amount FRAREE  GEAAR
REE ZRER ERERK REE ZRER  EXERR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BETLE BFTT BB
Trade and other payables 25 REMEMRE 205,675 205,675 205,675 239,726 239,726 239,726
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B B FiH
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LB HEBEN)
23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 23 HREREERAFE®
FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) BEE£RBHERERK E)
(ii) The Company (ii) A&27
2012 2011
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
undiscounted 6 months undiscounted 6 months
cash flow or on cash flow oron
Carrying  #RAH demand Carying @A H demand
amount MREHE  6EAAY amount FRAERE  6EAAR
EHE ZBeF EXERE REE ZEER  EXERR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BETITE BT BB
Trade and other payables 25 REMEMNRE 129,103 129,103 129,103 154,818 154,818 154,818
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHBARER 28,378 28,378 28,378 25,836 25,836 25,836
157,481 157,481 157,481 180,654 180,654 180,654

In order to manage the liquidity demands above, at 31 AHKFERE LMESRBIFNK - K2012612H31H + A&
December 2012, HK$149,241,346 (2011: HK$169,334,260) ERARBIDRBEAESGHER2BESABE
and HK$102,379,103 (2011: HK$117,151,309) of the ~ 149,241,3467T (20114 : #%169,334,2607T) k&1
Group’s and the Company’s assets, respectively, were held 102,379,103t (20114 : /&#¥117,151,3097T) °

as cash that is considered readily realisable.

T —FFR

FMEREEBRAF
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(BLBEREMN)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate risk arises
primarily from cash and cash equivalents which were
contracted at short-term variable rates and expose the
Group and the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate profile as
monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

23 MBEREERATVE®

() F=EmEME
AEERARARIZAERBRFERERRESEEREAZA
ERAZHINERSIBAKEERAARER S RA MEE
R o NEBRARE 2 F RGN AEREEEIWEIG)L0
T

(i) Interest rate risk (i) FIEEp
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate rate rate rate
kS ViR BERA= ViR
% HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Variable rate bank ~ $R177E
deposits 28 0.77 147,438 1.02 167,471 0.41 100,636 0.31 115,618
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) BBEDH

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s and the Company’s profit after tax
and retained profits by approximately HK$1,357,000
(2011: HK$1,550,000) and HK$1,006,000 (2011:
HK$1,156,000) respectively. Other components of equity
would not be affected (2011: HK$Nil) by changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments in
existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.
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T fEET— AR R A, A 10085 F - # BIE N
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FREBFEZE (20114 : BEZIT) °
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk
(i) Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and expense transactions that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk are primarily United States Dollar and
British Pound.

(ii) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of other trade receivables and payables held
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures that
the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying
or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

(LB REM)

23 BIREREERAFE®

(d) sShEEREER
(a) x5

AEBETEHRAZEREEBNEEEUIN 2 ERTIE
ZWAM H i AAESNERR - BRKERRR 2 EEE

(i) EHRREERAE

ERNBERBZEESEUIN 2 ERFHA ZEME SRR K
RNFIE  AEEeEVERMNEMN T TER - RS
EXEARELINE  BERFZESEFE @A RIH
BE -
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(ABHRBEMN)
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 23
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d)

(iii) The following table details the Group’s and the  (iii)
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

BEMREER AT E®

S L B ()

TRINFAKERARER

s
#*e

SEPSFEE gk g
Mgt BB AN — BRI EMNEEXAEMAR
HOEERE -

The Group The Company
by | b UG
2012 2011 2012 2011
United United United United
States British States British States British States British
Dollars Pounds Dollars Pounds Dollars Pounds Dollars Pounds
in R e 8 EYH R e 83
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
Tr T§ Tr T8 Tr T§ Tr T8
Trade and other B REMEK
receivables ] 24,362 4,216 22,147 421 24,362 4,216 22,147 421
Cash and cash ReRReEE
equivalents BH 13,000 6 14,862 8 13,000 6 14,862 8
Trade and other BHREMER
payables 3 (5,898) (1) (7,770) (114) (5,898) (11) (7,770) (114)
Amounts due from BB A
subsidiaries R - - - - - - 10,105 -
Amounts due to iENE
subsidiaries R - - - - 3,126 - (48) =
Net exposure MEREE
arising from RAERH
recognised assets FE
and liabilities 31,464 4211 29,239 i 34,590 4211 39,296 i
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in

(LB REM)

23 HMBEREERAFE®
(d) SMEmER (@
(iv) BUBED #

TREEASERARRNGE AAIERRR 2 EX

the Group’s and the Company’s profit after tax and ZEEAESPHGBHREBBIREBNER ZHOE
retained earnings in response to reasonably possible g e
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group
and the Company have significant exposure at the
balance sheet date.
The Group The Company
r5E LN
2012 2011 2012 2011
Effect Effect Effect Effect
Increase/ on profit Increase/ on profit  Increase/ on profit Increase/ on profit
(decrease) in after tax and (decrease) in after tax and (decrease)in after tax and (decrease)in after tax and
foreign retained foreign retained foreign retained foreign retained
exchange profits  exchange profits ~ exchange profits  exchange profits
rate  HRBiA rate HEHE rate  HRBIA rate HEHE
ExfEm/ BARRE EXgn/ SARRE ExEhN/ BARRE ExEN/ EIRRE
() BNz (dy) BizYE (BD) BAz¥ () BRANzPE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI AR BRI AR
United States Dollars 37T 5% 10,221 5% 9,487 5% 11,239 5% 12,742
(5%) (10,221) (5%) (9,487) (5%) (11,239) (5%) (12,742)
British Pounds B 5% 2,128 5% 159 5% 2,128 5% 159
(5%) (2,128) (5%) (159) (5%) (2,128) (5%) (159)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates occurred at
the balance sheet date and applied to the Company and
each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant.

HREIMNDBREXSEHRNEEARL  XERANAR
AREEZERERZBDNEEZMTESRTAMAR
ZE¥ER - MAA MR #E R (LENK) RS TE o
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(BLBEREMN)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(iv) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period until the next annual balance sheet date.
In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong Dollar and the United States
Dollar would be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the United States Dollar against
other currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in
the above table represent an aggregation of the effects
on each of the Company and the Group entities’ loss after
tax and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Hong Kong Dollar at the
exchange rate ruling as at the balance sheet date for
presentation purposes. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2011.

(e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair value as at 31 December
2012 and 2011.

24 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group and the
Company had no significant contingent assets or
liabilities.
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(iv) BEED(E)

FrE5 v B E B EfTEERNEEZE T —EFEE£ER
IEHAR 2 GBI &8 o itk - BB LA ET 2B IE
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(LB REM)

25 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group represents amounts paid to the Company’s
chairman and executive directors as disclosed in note 7.

25 BABES 2B ARG REER

(a) FEEEEAEME

EEFXZEEEAESNESBIEINARATRITE SHRKE
THEE ©

2012 2011

HK$ HK$

Short-term employee benefits 52 HiE B & F 11,367,263 8,302,706
Post-employment benefits % EREA 540,000 383,000
Share-based payments AR BERHEZNRS 1,114,800 =
13,022,063 8,685,706

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

5(a)).
(b) Other related party transactions

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011,
no other material related party transactions were entered
into by the Group.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
company balance sheet and in note 12.

26 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a) On 18 January 2013, the Company granted options
to a director appointed on 1 January 2013 to acquire
300,000 ordinary shares in the Company at an
exercise price of HK$0.86 per share.

(b) After the balance sheet date, the directors proposed
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note
21(b).

RN B IR B KA BN M RES(a) ©

(b) HfEEEtSEE

R2012F12A31BAFEE IF - ANEBEEFN 5 8B EITEM
BEARS °

MBS 2 EHREEBEEABR ZME 12 BE -

26 Z#EB#%EE

(a) M2013%F1A18H » KA BE T A BEEM300,000
B IEL — I N2013E1 B1REE 2 E8E - 51
FEBEASRBE0.867T -

(b) #EBR®R EFZZRBEZRYPE - FHERME
21(b) °

T FER FREXERAR
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(BLBEREMN)

27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors
used in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial position and
operating results. Some of the accounting policies require
the Group to apply estimates and judgements, on matters
that are inherently uncertain. The critical accounting
judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies
are described below.

(a) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis or reducing balance basis over the
estimated useful lives. The Group reviews annually the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if
there are significant changes from the previous
estimation.

(b) Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be required
for certain property, plant and equipment, interests in
leasehold land held for own use under operating leases,
and investments in subsidiaries, the recoverable amount
of the asset needs to be determined. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell
and the value in use. It is difficult to estimate precisely
the fair value price because quoted market prices for the
assets may not be readily available. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to items such as level of
turnover and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items such
as turnover and operating costs.
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27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Impairments (Continued)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of the ageing analysis and an evaluation of
collectability. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the directors when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the operating results in the year and in future
years.

(¢) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet
used and temporary deduction differences. Those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available against
which the unused tax credit can be utilised, consequently
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

(LB REM)

27 EETAETRAE @)

(b) RME (&)

AEBERBEREEMET ZRED T R A REFESER
ERREBRETIR EERTREBREFPZEEER
FOBEMR M AR SR 1T — E AR E 2 HI -

SRR B BT IRIE ISR AT & BB AR 2 M F R

() FREH

EEMBHEESREE TR RRRARE 2 71 R
BRAUZZE AREFEBFERHZRERE - LE
SRR IR EE - 2ERXHZHARETEH®T - A&t
RRBOEPIZ FREEE -

AR IR & B Tl oK B B i R 0RL = 2R 2 B B RS 1R
R o A TR IR E B (2 7 R HOE R A% AT A (E 8K
RERERRBRA B AT @R - BEEANEARRE
ARBUR A Z AT BENE » BIRE Z FHE T E IR - W R
AR A Ao AR ERE R IR E E - RIS ERBIMELTH
HEE -
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27 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d) Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged inventories
analyses, projections of expected future saleability of
goods and management experience and judgement.
Based on these reviews, write-down of inventories will
be made when the carrying amounts of inventories fall
below their estimated net realisable value. Due to
changes in customers’ performance, actual saleability
of goods may be different from estimates and profit or
loss could be affected by differences from estimates.

(e) Share-based payments

The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted
to employees and other eligible persons measured by
professional valuers based on the Black Scholes model
with modifications to reflect the impact of vesting periods
and exercise patterns on the option value. The accuracy
of the above estimates could affect the amount of share-
based payments transactions recognised in the income
statement.
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28 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2012

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments and five new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 and which
have not been adopted in these consolidated financial
statements. Of these developments, the following relate
to matters that may be relevant to the Group’s operations
and consolidated financial statements:

(LB REM)

28 HZE2012F 12A31BILEEDEMAER
EM2EE] C HEARREZEBESE

HENE ?éﬁﬁ%&%%ﬁ*za BE @A AEEBEM
ZIABE] - STERIRZRE - BREZE2012F12A318 IEF
F1D5K$xﬁl Hf}}ﬁwﬁﬁﬂ*ﬂﬁkﬁﬁﬁ%m o TEiE LK
XH o AT AAREEEARBR 2 EE RV HHRE

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RULT B #iBR %
FUEZETFHEER

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial

statements — presentation of items of other comprehensive income

BAEGENER] — 27| E b 2w Kt

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

EARMBREEN10-GAPBHRE

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

BN BREER 12— REMEE Y B2 BE

HKFRS 13, Fajr value measurement
BEYBRELEN13—AFEFE

HKAS 27 (2011), Separate financial statements
BB G ER27(2011) - B W R &

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
SEEEBMBEREER2009F 20115 B H

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:

<TE

Disclosures — offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

EEVBREEA7E —eRIE  RE-cREERcRBEZEH

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments:

Presentation — offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

TREERTRARIEE

BB ERAET 2T R : 25—

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BEAUBHRELER -SRI A

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far it has concluded that their adoption is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

1 July 2012
2012 7R 18

1 January 2013
20131 H1H

1 January 2013
2013F1H1H

1 January 2013
20131 H1H

1 January 2013
201351 H1H

1 January 2013
2013 1H1H

1 January 2013
201351 H1H

1 January 2014
201451 H1H

1 January 2015
201551 H1H

EXOH®R ﬁEIIEEHEi‘EHH&tQﬂ A AR R R

EVIR AR E - 25 2w AR FIER] - 5
@EH'J&%E@EH# g ¥T¢'§l2L BRBE NP EARRIEK

Ej(/\ E
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Five Years Financial Summary

LFEMBRE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS melBER
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT ABETx BETxT BETT B¥%Tx
Turnover BERE 724,191 817,000 966,564 1,175,520 1,278,079
Profit/(loss) before BN A (BE)
taxation (30,619) 7,983 37,104 24,256 59,989
Income tax Fris®i X)) /5t A
(expense)/credit 10,329 (23) (7,312) (6,096) (12,988)
Profit/(loss) for the year  ZRA & IR
and attributable to I AFR 2
equity shareholders wmAl (E18)
of the Company (20,290) 7,960 29,792 18,160 47,001
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS mEBEEABXR
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT ATt BT  BE%Tx
Property, plant U &
and equipment 175,207 177,426 200,107 222,924 210,526
Interests in leasehold BiEgaHE
land held for own use BIEERZ
under operating leases LIS 10,405 10,112 10,000 10,077 9,658
Deferred tax assets EIEFIEE = 5,727 6,672 8,378 9,224 8,996
Net current assets MEEEFE 300,997 291,759 293,231 291,487 329,785
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIE & (& (2,411) (165) (161) (207) (193)
Net assets BEZE 489,925 485,804 511,555 533,505 558,772
Share capital A& AR 196,932 197,092 205,873 216,104 216,487
Reserves & 292,993 288,712 305,682 317,401 342,285
Total equity attributable to KA &% =
equity shareholders FE(L =
of the Company 489,925 485,804 511,555 533,505 558,772
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